AGADIA COLLEGE LIGNA M MOLFVILLE, M.S.

The Calendar

of

The University

of

St. francis Xavier's College

Antigonish, Plova Scotia.

1900=1901.



ANTIGONISH, N. S. THE CASKET PRINTING & PUBLISHING COMPANY (LIMITED). 1900.



The Calendar

of

The University

of

St. francis Xavier's College

Antigonish, Plova Scotia.

1900=1901.



ANTIGONISH, N. S. The Casket Printing & Publishing Company (Limited). 1900.

Table of Contents.

11

| | | | • | | | | | | | 1 | Pag | ge. |
|-----------------------------|------|------|---|---------|-----|-------|-----|-------|-------|-----|-------|------|
| Calendar for 1900-1901 | | | | | | | | | | | | 3 |
| Historical Sketch | | | | | | | | | • • • | ••• | ••• | 4 |
| Board of Governors | | | | | | | • • | | | | | 9 |
| Faculty of Arts | | | | | | | | | | | | 10 |
| Course of Studies | | | | | | | | ••• | • • | • • | | II |
| Matriculation | | | | | | | | • • • | | | | 17 |
| Degrees | | | | | | • • | | | | | | 18 |
| Honours | | | | | | ••• | | | • • | • • | • . • | 21 |
| Faculty of Applied Science, | | | | | | • • | | | | | | 28 |
| Course of Studies, | | | | | | | | ••• | • • • | • • | | 28 |
| Laboratory, | | | | | | | ••• | | • • | ••• | | 32 |
| Library, | | | | | ••• | | | ••• | ••• | ••• | | 33 |
| Sources of Revenue, | | | | | | | | • • | ••• | | | 36 |
| Residence, Fees, etc., | | | | ••• | | | | ••• | • • | ••• | | 42 |
| Terminal Examinations, | | | | | ••• | | | • • | ••• | ••• | | 44 |
| Prize List, | | | | | | | | ••• | ••• | ••• | | 48 |
| Graduates, | | | | | | | | | | | | 49 |
| Matriculants | | | | | | • • • | | ••• | ••• | | | 49 |
| College Societies | | | | | | ••• | | | | | , | 50 |
| Department of Law | | | | | | | | | ••• | ••• | | . 51 |
| I ist of Students, | | | | | | | | | | | | 52 |
| Alumni Association, | | | | | | | | | | | | 55 |
| List of Alumni, | | | | | | | | | | | | 62 |

11

Calendar for 1900=1901,

4

1900.

| Sept. | 11. | Tuesday. | Meeting of the Faculties. |
|-------|-----|-----------|---|
| | 13. | Thursday. | Michaelmas Term begins. |
| | 14. | Friday. |) Matriculation and Supplementary Ex- |
| | 15. | Saturday. | aminations. |
| | 17. | Monday. | Lectures begin. |
| Oct. | 7. | Sunday. | Festival of the Holy Rosary. |
| Nov. | 1. | Thursday. | All Saints' Day. No Lectures. |
| | 30. | Friday. | St. Andrew's Day. Triduum in honor of St. Francis Xavier begins. |
| Dec. | 3. | Monday. | St. Francis Xavier's Day. No Lectures. |
| | 8. | Saturday. | Festival of the Immaculate Conception. No Lectures. |
| | | | |

22. Saturday. Michaelmas Term ends.

1901.

| Jan. | 7. | Monday. | Lent Term begins. |
|-------|-----|------------|--|
| | 9. | Wednesday. | Sessional Examinations begin. |
| Feb. | 20. | Wednesday. | Ash Wednesday. |
| March | 17. | Sunday. | St. Patrick's Day. |
| | 19. | Tuesday. | St. Joseph's Day. |
| | 25. | Monday. | Festival of the Annunciation. |
| April | 4. | Thursday. | Maunday Thursday. Spiritual Retreat begins. |
| | 5. | Friday. | Good Friday. |
| | 6. | Saturday. | Lent Term ends. |
| | 9. | Tuesday. | Easter Term begins. |
| May | 2. | Thursday. | Last Day for receiving applications for Degrees. |
| | 16. | Thursday. | Ascension Day. No Lectures. |
| | 17. | Friday. | Solemn Novena in honor of the Holy Ghost begins. |
| | 26. | Sunday. | Whitsunday. |
| | 31. | Friday. | Terminal and Matriculation Examina- tions, and Final Examinations for |
| | | | Degrees begin. |
| June | 8. | Saturday. | Examinations end. |
| | 11. | Tuesday. | Commencementer Exercises begin. |
| | 13. | Thursday. | Easter Term ends. |

Mistorical Sketch.

St. Francis Xavier's College was founded in 1853 by the Right Revd. Colin Francis McKinnon, Bishop of Arichat. The principal object which the venerable prelate had in view in establishing \mathfrak{s} College in Eastern Nova Scotia, was the education of students aspiring to the priesthood. Since then its scope has broadened, and, while the original object of its foundation has never been overlooked, its aim for many years past has been to furnish a liberal and thorough education, thus fitting its students for any of the learned professions. The College was transferred from Arichat to Antigonish in 1854. In 1866 it received University powers by the following Act of the Legislature of Nova

AN ACT TO ENABLE THE COLLEGE OF ST. FRANCIS XAVIER AT ANTIGONISH, TO CONFER DEGREES.

(Passed the 7th day of May, A. D. 1866.)

Be it enacted by the Governor, Council and Assembly, as follows :

1. St. Francis Xavier's College, at Antigonish, shall be held and taken to be an University, with all and every the usual privileges of such an institution, and that the students in the said College shall Master and Doctor in the several Arts and Faculties, at the appointed times, and shall have power, within themselves, of performing all the

scholastic exercises necessary for the conferring of such degrees as shall be directed by the statutes, rules and ordinances of the College. In 1880, during the presidency of the Revd. Dr. Angus Cameron, the eastern wing of the present College heild!

Cameron, the eastern wing of the present College buildings was erected. Of the funds required for its completion, His Lordship Bishop Cameron contributed over six thousand dollars; the rest of the clergy about two thousand seven hundred dollars.

In 881, the Provincial grant, which varied donars. fifteen hundred dollars a year, was withdrawn, and His Lordship Bishop Cameron appealed to the people of the Diocese to form an endowment fund. For this purpose the sum of over twenty thousand dollars was collected and invested.

In 1882 a Board of Governors was organized under the following Act: by the in estabation of ope has ion has been to students osferred Univerof Nova

VIER

ollows:

ld and eges of e shall chelor, pointed all the rees as ollege.

Angus s was dship e rest

ht to dship m an venty

e fol-

AN ACT TO INCORPORATE THE GOVERNORS OF SAINT FRANCIS XAVIER'S COLLEGE.

(Passed the 10th day of March, 1882.)

Be it enacted by the Governor, Council and Assembly, as follows :

1. The Right Reverend John Cameron, D. D., Bishop of Arichat, and his successors in office canonically appointed, together with the Rev. John Shaw, P. P., Rev. Neil McNeil, D. D., William Girroir, Esq., J. P., and Colin F. McIsaac, Esq., Barrister, shall be a body politic and corporate by the name of the "Governors of St. Francis Xavier's College, Antigonish."

2. The corporation hereby created shall have perpetual succession and a common seal, and shall have power to take by donation, deed. device, bequest, purchase, or otherwise, howsoever, real and personal property, and to sell and convey the same.

3. The four last named members of the said Board of Governors, under the first section of this Act, shall continue to hold office until death, resignation, or permanent removal from the province of Nova Scotia, but if any of them shall cease to be in communion with the Roman Catholic Church, he shall cease to be a member of the Corporation hereby created.

4. Any vacancy which may from time to time occur among the said Governors, shall be supplied by the election of a person in communion with the Roman Catholic Church, by the remaining members of the Corporation, subject, however, to the notification and approval of the said Bishop of Arichat and to his successors. The term of office of the persons so elected shall be the same as that mentioned in the third section of this Act.

5. The Corporation hereby created may from time to time make statutes. rules and ordinances, not inconsistent with the laws of this Province, for the management of the said College, and all matters appertaining thereto, and for the management of the funds and property entrusted to it, and may appoint the Professors and teachers in the said College, and remove them from time to time, and regulate the salaries to be paid to them. The exercise of any of the powers mentioned in this section shall, however, be subject to the approval of the said Bishop of Arichat for the time being, and his successors.

6. The said College of St. Francis Xavier shall continue to be a University, with all and every the usual privileges of such institutions.

7. The Corporation hereby created shall have power to appoint a Treasurer, Secretary, and such other officers and servants that they may from time to time deem necessary for the purposes of the Corporation, and may hold real estate not exceeding fifty thousand dollars.

The removal from the Province of the Right Rev. Neil Mc-Neil, D. D., now Bishop of Nilopolis, made vacant, under Section 3 of the above Act, the office of Governor held by him, and rendered necessary the election of a successor. In the autumn of 1895 the remaining Governors chose the Very Rev. James M. Quinan, D. D., V. G., to fill the vacant Governorship. The following amendment was made necessary in 1887 by a change in the name of the Diocese.

AN ACT TO AMEND CHAPTER 77 OF THE ACTS OF 1882, EN-TITLED "AN ACT TO INCORPORATE THE GOVERNORS OF ST. FRANCIS XAVIER'S COLLEGE."

(Passed the 3rd day of May, 1887.)

1. The word "Arichat," wherever it appears in the several sections of said chapter, is hereby struck out, and the word "Antigonish" substituted therefor.

In 1888 another amendment was made to enable the Board to borrow money needed to erect new buildings :

AN ACT TO AMEND CHAPTER 77 OF THE ACTS OF 1882, ENTITLED AN "ACT TO INCORPORATE, ETC."

(Passed the 16th day of April, 1888.)

Be it enacted by the Governor, Council and Assembly, as follows :

1. Section two of said Act is hereby amended by adding at the end thereof the following words :

"The said Corporation may borrow a sum of money, not exceeding sixteen thousand dollars, for repairing and enlarging the College building at Antigonish, and shall pay the same in four annual instalments, with interest at a rate not exceeding six per centum per annum, such interest to be paid annually. The loan may be obtained at once, or in portions from time to time, as the Governors may require the same, and they shall give the lenders debentures or coupons for the amount of the loan, the interest on which shall be paid annually. The loan shall be a charge upon the land and pers/nal property of the Corporation, and not against the individual members thereof."

In 1888, during the presidency of Rev. Neil McNeil, D. D., now Bishop of Nilopolis, the sum mentioned in the above amendment was borrowed, and the new building completed. With the wing erected in 1880, the building consists of a central part, ninety by thirty-nine feet, with a tower, ninety feet high, projecting sixteen feet in front, and two wings, each thirty-eight feet wide, one of them eighty and the other eighty-three feet in length, the latter having an extension twenty-two by twentyseven. The material is brick, which has proved to be of excellent quality. The building is well plumbed and ventilated, and is heated throughout with hot water. 887 by a

82, EN-

several ne word

Board to

NTITLED

follows:

ding at

exceed-College l instalannum, at once, uire the for the inually. y of the

D. D., amendith the dl part, h, proth feet feet in wentyexceld, and A further amendment was made in 1894 to legalize the election by the Alumni Association, recently established, of two additional Governors. It is the following:

AN ACT TO AMEND CHAPTER 77, OF THE ACTS OF 1892, ENTITLED "AN ACT TO INCORPORATE," ETC.

Be it enacted by the Governor, Council, and Assembly as follows :

I. Section one of Chapter 77, of the Acts of 1882, is hereby amended by adding after the word "Barrister," in the fifth line, the words "And two persons to be elected annually by the Alumni Association of St. Francis Xavier's College."

2. Section four of said Act is hereby amended by adding the words "Named in section three of said Act," after the word "Governors" in the second line thereof.

In 1845, during the presidency of the Rev. D. A. Chisholm, D. D., the college buildings were enlarged by an addition to the western wing. This new wing was sixty feet by forty, the third story serving as an infirmary, and the rest being devoted exclusively to domestic purposes.

In 1896, an amendment to the Act incorporating the Board of Governors was made to enable the College to borrow money for the further enlargement of the buildings. This amendment was supplemented by another in 1897, legalizing the holding, by the Board of Governors, of property to the value of two hundred thousand dollars.

In 1 \times 97, the Convent for the Sisters of St. Martha, who have charge of the domestic affairs of the College, was completed. It may here be remarked, that, since these devoted religious have been in control of this department, the greatest satisfaction has been given.

In 1900, the Act of Incorporation was further amended :

An Act to amend chapter 77 of the Acts of 1882, entitled, An Act to incorporate the Governors of St. Francis Xavier's College.

(Passed the 30th day of March, A. D 1900.)

SECTION 1. Section 2 of cap. 77, Acts of 1882, repealed, following substituted.

Be it enacted by the Governor, Council and Assembly, as follows:

1. Chapter 77 of the Acts of 1882, entitled, "An Act to incorporate the Governors of Saint Francis Xavier's College," is amended as follows:

1. Section 2 of the Act hereby amended is repealed, and the following section substituted therefor:

"2. The Corporation hereby created shall have perpetual succession and a common seal, and shall have power to take by donation, deed, devise, bequest, purchase, or otherwise, howsoever, real and personal property, and to sell and convey the same; and shall have power to borrow money for the purposes of the corporation and secure the repayment of any loan of money by mortgages or promissory notes, which the said corporation shall have power to make for that purpose." a Act to College,"

repealed,

berpetual to take therwise, and cononey for ment of hich the se."

Board of Governors.

(INCORPORATED 1882.)

(Appointed under the Act of 1882.)

RIGHT REV. JOHN CAMERON, D. D., Bishop of Antigonish. (Chairman ex-officio.)
REV. JOHN SHAW, P. P.,
VERY REV. JAMES M. QUINAN, D. D., V. G.
WILLIAM GIRRIOR, Esq.
HON. C. F. MCISAAC, Esq., M. P.

(Elected by the Alumni Association.)

A. G HAMILTON, Esq. A. G. MACDONALD, Esq.

REV. A. THOMPSON, D. D., Secretary - Treasurer of Board of Governors.

College Officials.

RECTOR: REV. ALEXANDER THOMPSON, D. D. VICE-RECTOR: REV. RONALD MCDONALD, D. D. PREFECT OF STUDIES: REV. ALEXANDER MCDONALD, D. D. CURATOR OF THE MUSEUM: REV. RONALD MCDONALD, D. D. LIBRARIAN: REV. D. V. PHALEN, M. A. CURATOR OF THE LABORATORY OF PHYSICS: GEORGE MCDONALD,

Esq., B. Sc.

Faculty of Erts.

REV. ALEXANDER MCDONALD, D. D. Dean - Professor of Metaphysics, Psychology, and Christian Doctrine.

> Rev. ALEXANDER THOMPSON, D. D., Professor of Logic.

Rev. DOUGALD C. GILLIS, PH.D., S. T. L., Professor of Latin and Greek.

REV. RONALD MCDONALD, D. D., Professor of Geology and Zoology

Rev. D. V. PHALEN, M. A., Professor of English Literature.

Rev. HUGH McPHERSON, D. D., Professor of Chemistry.

HEINRICH SCHONENBERGER, Esq., B. A., Professor of French and German.

GEORGE MACDONALD, Esq., B. Sc., Professor of Physics.

A. MCINTYRE, Esq., B. A., Professor of Mathematics.

HON. ANGUS MACGILLIVRAY, Lecturer in Constitutional History.

C. ERNEST GREGORY Esq., LL. B , Lecturer in International Law.

JOSEPH A. WALL, ESQ., M. A., Lecturer in Contracts.

Doctrine.

L.,

.

Course of Studies.

LATIN.

Freshman Year.

Grammar, Morphology and Elementary Syntax; Composition as in Arnold's Latin Prose Composition, to end of Ex. 30; Cæsar, De Bello Gallico, Books I, II and III; Cicero, Ist Oration against Cataline; Virgil, Æneid, Book III; Georgics, Book I.

Sophomore Year.

Grammar, as in Harkness or Allen and Greenough; Composition, Latin Prose; Exercises in Sight Translation; Cicero, 1st and 2nd Orations against Cataline, Pro Archia Poeta; Virgil, Æneid; History of Rome commenced (Smith's Smaller History of Rome.)

Junior Year.

Grammar, Review Entire; Composition, Latin Prose; Exercises in Sight Translation; Cicero, De Amicitia, De Senectute, Pro Lege Manilia; Sallust, Jugarthine War; Horace, Odes, Books II and III, and Ars Poetica; History of Rome completed.

Senior Year.

Composition, and Critical Study of Style in Prose and Verse; Cicero, Pro Milone; Horace, Odes and Satires; Tacitus, Agricola and Germania; Livy, Selections; History of Latin Literature.

GREEK.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

Grammar, Goodwin's; Greek Prose Composition; Xenophon, Anabasis, Books I and II; Cyropaedia, Book I. Exercises in Sight Translation.

Junior Year.

Grammar, Goodwin's; Greek Prose Composition; Xenophon, Hellenica, Books I and II; Demosthenes, Olynthiacs Thucydides, Book VII; Exercises in Sight Translation. History of Greece (Smith's Smaller History of Greece).

Senior Year.

Grammar, Goodwin's (reviewed); Greek Prose Composition; Homer, *Iliad*; Demosthenes, *De Corona*; Euripides, *Medea*. Sight Translation. History of Greek Literature.

FRENCH.

Freshman Year.

Fasnacht's Progressive Course; Exercises in Conversation; Translation.

Sophomore Year.

Fasnacht's Progressive Course; Translation; Exercises in . Conversation; Authors Selected.

Junior Year.

Fasnacht's Progressive course; Molière, Le Bourgeois Gentilhomme; Souvestre, Un Philosophe Sous les Toits; Racine, Esther; Exercises in Conversation and Composition; Sight Translation.

Senior Year.

Grammar Renewed; Corneille, Le Cid, Horace; Voltaire, Charles XII; Molière, Selections; Exercises in Conversation and Composition.

GERMAN.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

Fasnacht's Progressive Course: First Year; Translation; Exercises in Conversation.

Junior and Senior Years

Fasnacht's Progressive Course: Second Year; Translation; Conversation; Author; Helene Storkel Unter dem Christbaum.

ENGLISH.

Freshman Year.

Grammar, Mason or an equivalent; Language and Composition; Authors: Dickens, Christmas Carol; Scott, The Lady of the Lake; Goldsmith, The Vicar of Wakefield; Father Ryan, Selections.

Sophomore Year.

Grammar, Mason or an equivalent; Lectures on the Principles of Rhetoric; Authors: Macaulay, Pitt; Addison, Life and Works; Wiseman, Essay on Shakespeare; James Russell Lowell, Selections; Scott, The Lady of the Lake; Tennyson, The Princess; De Quincy, Joan of Arc; Essay Writing and a Critical Review of Authors studied in the Freshman Year; and Stopford Brooke's Primer. nversation ;

Exercises in

eois Gentil-; Racine, on; Sight

Voltaire,

anslation;

anslation; hristbaum.

Composie Lady of her Ryan,

Principles Life and Il Lowell, The Prina Critical Stopford

13

Junior Year

History of English Language (Lounsbury); History of English Literature (Meiklejohn and the Christian Brothers' Manual); Lectures on Rhetoric; Dowden's Shakespeare Primer; Authors: Newman, Essays, Selections; Edmund Burke, The Sublime and Beautiful; Johnson, Lives of the Poets; Shakespeare, Julius Cæsar, King Lear, Merchant of Venice; Pope, Essay on Man, Essay on Criticism; Newman's Dream of Gerontius.

Senior Year.

History of English Language and History of English Literature (reviewed), Jenkins' Handbook of English Literature; Lectures on the Artistic Element in English Literature, with Special Reference to the Drama; Lectures on 19th Century Literature; Authors: Shakespeare, Macbeth, Richard II, Henry V; Chaucer, Canterbury Tales; Dryden, The Hind and Panther, Mac-Flecknoe; Tennyson, In Memoriam, The Princess, Idylls of the King, Selections; Ruskin, Sesame and Lilies, Stones of Venice, Selections, Eagle's Nest; Newman, Poetry with Reference to Aristotle's Poetics, Idea of a University; Daniel Webster (Selections).

[The following works are recommended for parallel reading: Old English Period, by Brother Azarias; Philosophy of Literature, by Brother Azarias; Newman's Essays, Critical and Historical; Newman's Historical Sketches: DeQuincey's Confessions of an Opium Eater; Ruskin's Modern Painters; Saintsbury's English Literature; Coppen's Rhetoric; Hill's Rhetoric; Brownson's Republic; Boswell's Johnson; Scott's Waverley and Guy Mannering; Hawthorne's House of the Seven Gables; and Marble Fawn.]

PHILOSOPHY.

Junior Year.

Lectures on the Nature and Scope of Logic; Logic Formal and Applied; Ontology.

Text Books-Zigliara, Summa Philosophica, Vol. I; Clarke's Logic, (Stonyhurst Series).

Senior Year-First Division.

Cosmology; Psychology; Natural Theology.

Text Books-Zigliara, Summa Philosophica, Vol. II; Maher's Psychology (Stonyhurst Series).

Senior Year-Second Division.

ETHICS — The Criteria of Morality; the Natural Law; Society; the Relations Between Church and State. Text Books — Zigliara, Summa Philosophica, Vol. III; Rickaby; Moral Philosophy.

PHYSICS.

Sophomore Year.

Elementary Treatment of Physical Phenomena, illustrated by experiments. Text Book, Gage's Introduction to Physical Science.

Junior Year.

Statics, Dynamics, Hydrostatics, Hydrodynamics, Acoustics, including the Physical Theory of Music, Thermometry, Hygrometry, Calorimetry. The treatment of subjects in this and the following year of the course will be both experimental and mathematical The following works are especially recommended: Ganot's General Treatise, revised by Atkinson; Maxwell's Theory of Heat; Tyndall on Sound; Cotterill and Slade's Lessons in Applied Mechanics. For Exercises and Practical Work in this and the following year, Jones' Examples in Physics, and Glazebrook and Shaw's Practical Physics will be found useful.

Senior Year.

Light, Electricity and Magnetism. Besides Ganot's Physics, the following works are recommended: Sylvanus Thompson's Electricity and Magnetism, and, for advanced work, Dynamo-Electric Machinery, by the same author.

CHEMISTRY.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

Lectures on Elementary Chemistry; the Chemistry of Air, Oxygen, Hydrogen, Nitrogen, Water and other Non-Metals, the Metric System; Atomic Theory; Fundamental Laws of Combination; Metals and their Alloys; Acids and Salts; Experiments Illustrating the Lectures; Qualitative Analysis of an Elementary Character. Text Books: Williams' Introduction; Steele's Fourteen Weeks in Chemistry; Storer and Lindsay's Manual of Chemistry; Tanner's Agricultural Chemistry. ; Society ; —Zigliara, sophy.

illustrated o Physical

Acoustics, Hygroms and the ental and nmended: 's *Theory Lessons in* rk in this od Glaze-

Physics, ompson's Dynamo-

y of Air, etals, the of Combiperiments ementary e's Fourof Chem-

Junior and Senior Years.

Review of Work of Preceding Year; Exhaustive Examination and Preparation of Non-Metallic Radicles and Their Compounds, also of Metallic Radicles and their Compounds; Qualitative Analysis continued; Outlines of Organic Chemistry. The following works of reference will be used: Harcourt and Madan's Practical Chemistry: Roscoe & Schorlemmer's Treatise on Chemistry.

MATHEMATICS.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

ARITHMETIC. -Completed and Revised.

ALGEBRA. — Involution, Evolution, Simple and Quadratic Equations, Imaginary Quantities, Ratio and Proportion, as in Hall and Knight's or an equivalent.

GEOMETRY. -- Euclid, to the end of Book Fourth, with Exercises as in Hall and Stevens.

PRACTICAL MATHEMATICS.—Solution of Triangles, Measurement of Plane Areas, Measurement of Volumes, Principles of Navigation.

Junior Year.

ALGEBRA.—Theory of Quadratic Equations, Indeterminable Equations, Progressions, Permutations and Combinations, Binomial Theorem, Logarithms.

GEOMETRY-Review of Preceding Year's Work; Books V and VI with Exercises.

TRIGONOMETRY.—Investigation of Trigonometrical Formulæ, with Exercises; Use of Mathematical Tables; Measurements in Heights and Distances.

Senior Year.

ALGEBRA.—Continuation of Preceding Year's Work; Theory of Probabilities; Interest and Annuities; Limits; Convergent and Divergent Series; Determinants; Theory of Equations; Text-Book, Hall and Knight's Higher Algebra.

GEOMETRY.—Books V and VI of Euclid reviewed; Books XI and XII of Euclid, Conic Sections; Analytical Geometry. TRIGONOMETRY.—Work of Preceding Year Reviewed; Spherical Trigonometry.

Differential and Integral Calculus.

BOTANY.

Preliminary Instruction on the Fauna and Flora of Eastern Canada; Lectures on Plant-cells, Tissue and Tissue systems of Plants; Morphology of the Plant-body; Principles of Classification and Laws of Distribution; Dissection and Microscopic Examination of Plants.

Text-Books-Gray's How Plants Grow; Bessey's Essentials of Botany.

PHYSIOLOGY AND HYGIENE.

A course of lectures on Physiology and Hygiene will be given each year, open to all students who have matriculated, or who are qualified to profit by them

Text-Books — Edwards' Hygiene; The Human Body and the Effects of Narcotics (Martin).

HISTORY.

In History such division into classes will be made as may appear necessary in the course of the Academic year. There will be a review of British and Canadian History, and lectures on the History of the United States and Universal History. To enable students to follow these lectures with the utmost advantage to themselves, the use of the following works is recommended:

CANADIAN HISTORY. - Clement's History of Canada; Bourinot's do.; Roberts' do.

BRITISH HISTORY. — The Text-Book prescribed by the Nova Scotia Council of Public Instruction; Greene's Short History of the English People; Burke's Abridgement of Lingard's History of England.

UNITED STATES HISTORY. - De Courcy and Shea's History of the United States.

UNIVERSAL HISTORY .- Swinton ; Fredet.

[For parallel reading the following works are recommended: Kingford's History of Canada; Bourinot's How Canada is Governed; Lingard's History of England; D'Arcy McGee's History of Ireland; Burton's History of Scotland; Dicey's Law of the British Constitution; Bancroft's History of the United States; McMaster's Constitution and Progress of the United States.] ed; Spheri-

of Eastern systems of Classificascopic Ex-

Essentials

ll be given ed, or who

dy and the

le as may There will tres on the To enable antage to inded :

a; Bouri-

the Nova History of History of

listory of

imended: a is Govs History aw of the l States; ss.]

CHRISTIAN DOCTRINE

There are three classes in Christian Doctrine. Once a week an hour is given to each class separately, and on Sundays all assemble in the College Chapel to hear an instruction from one of the Reverend Professors. [Non-Catholic students are not required to attend any of these Classes.] Text Book, Schouppe.

Matriculation.

To be admitted as an undergraduate in Arts a Matriculation Examination must be passed, of which the following is a syllabus :

LATIN. — Grammar, Morphology and Elementary Syntax; Composition as in Arnold's Latin Prose Composition to Ex. 30 Cæsar, Gallic War, Book II, Cornelius Nepos, One Life (for 1900-1901, Hannibal); or any equivalent work.

- GREEK OR FRENCH. Grammar and easy sentences; as in Initia Græca, Part I, or French Principia, Part I, or equivalents.
- MATHEMATICS. Arithematic entire; Geometry, Books I, II and III and Exercises at end of Books I and II; Algebra, to the end of Simple Equations.
- ENGLISH. Grammar, Parsing and Analysis of Sentences, Composition, Elementary and Advanced, as in Dalgleish. Short Essay, and Critical Study of an Author, announced
 from year to year (for 1900-1901, Dickens' Christmas Carol).

HISTORY. -British and Canadian.

GEOGRAPHY.-Canadian and General.

CHEMISTRY. - As in Williams.

- BOOK-KEEPING. Single and double entry Commercial forms, and problems.
- CHRISTIAN DOCTRINE. (For Catholics). As in Schouppe. Part second or an equivalent.

The examination will be held in June of each year. A certificate of successful examination on a Syllabus equivalent to the above will exempt from College Matriculation. provided the candidate made the marks on each subject required by the College standards. The test as to the points to be made for Matriculation are the same as for a pass at the terminal examinations. The tests for undergraduates intending to take Degrees are of a higher standard, as seen below.

The Academic Pear.

The Academic Year is divided into three terms. In 1900-1901, these will end, respectively, on December 22, April 6th, and June 13th. Examinations for degrees, class-distinction, and class-standing are held at the beginning of the Lent (or second) Term, and towards the end of the Easter (or Third) Term. Upon the results of these examinations promotions at the beginning of the following year will depend. To secure a PASS into the next year an average of 50 points out of a possible 100 on the papers set at both examinations must be made; for FIRST RANK, in any class, 85 points or upwards; for SECOND RANK, 75 or upwards; for THIRD RANK, 65 or upwards. To secure a PASS, a student must, besides making an average of 50, make at least 50 on each of the following, namely: English, Latin, Philosophy, Christian Doctrine and one Mathematical Paper.

Degrees.

The following degrees are conferred in this Faculty: Bachelor of Arts (B. A.), Bachelor of Letters (B. L.), and Master of Arts (M. A.).

COURSE OF STUDIES FOR THE DEGREE OF B. A.

First Year

1. Latin.

- 2. English.
- 3. French or Greek.
- 4. Mathematics.
- 5. Chemistry.
- 6. History.
- 7. (For Catholic Students) Christian Doctrine.

Second Year.

- 1. Latin.
- 2. English.
- 3. French or Greek.
- 4. Mathematics.
- 5. Physics.
- 6. History.
- 7. (For Catholic Students) Christian Doctrine.

In 1900-April 6th, nction, and (or second) erm. Upon ginning of to the next the papers NK, in any upwards; , a student 50 on each , Christian

y: Bache-Master of

B. A

- 1. Latin.
- 2. English.
- 3. French or Greek.
- 4. Philosophy.
- 5. Any one of the following :
 - (a) Mathematics (any branch).
 - (b) History.
 - (c) Chemistry.
 - (d) Physics
- 6. (For Catholic Students) Christian Doctrine

Fourth Year.

- 1. Latin.
- 2. English.
- 3. French or Greek.
- 4. Philosophy.
- 5. The subject chosen the preceding year, or a subject in Law.
- 6. (For Catholic Students) Christian Doctrine.

The conditions necessary for obtaining the degree of B. A. are the following :

(a) That the candidate be of good moral character.

(b) That he make an average of not less than 60 per cent. at the Sessional and Terminal Examinations of each year.

(c) That he make not less than 60 per cent. in English, Latin, and Philosophy, nor less than 50 in Christian Doctrine, nor less than 40 in any subject of the first and second years of the course. In the subjects of the third and fourth years, a minimum of 50 is required.

Students who have failed to pass the required examination in any subject, may, upon making application to the professor of such subject and paying a fee of \$1.00, obtain a supplementary examination at the beginning of the next term.

A Bachelor of Arts of at least three years' standing, and of good reputation, who produces a thesis satisfactory to the Faculty on a literary, scientific, or philosophical subject, is entitled to the degree of M. A. Applications for degrees must be made not later each year than May 1st, and should be accompanied by the fee for the diploma. Should a candidate be unsuccessful at his examination, his fee will be returned. The fees are as follows:

> For B. A.....\$ 5.00 For M. A..... 10.00

COURSE OF STUDIES FOR THE DEGREE OF B. L.

First Year.

1. Latin, French or Greek.

2. English.

3. Mathematics.

4. Chemistry.

5. History.

6. (For Catholics) Christian Doctrine.

Second Year.

1. Latin, French or Greek.

2. English.

3. Mathematics.

4. Physics.

5. History.

6. (For Catholics) Christian Doctrine.

T'hird Year.

1. Latin, French or Greek.

2. English.

3. History.

4. Philosophy.

5. One Mathematical or Scientific subject.

6. (For Catholics) Christian Doctrine.

Fourth Year.

1. Latin, French or Greek.

2. English.

3. Philosophy.

4. History.

5. One Mathematical or Scientific subject.

The conditions necessary for obtaining the degree of B. L. are the following :

(a) and (b). As stated for the degree of B. A.

(c). That he make at the sessional and terminal examinations not less than 60 per cent. in English, not less than 50 in Christian Doctrine and Philosophy, nor less than 40 in any other subject of the First and Second Years of the Course. In the subjects of the Third and Fourth Years a minimum of 50 is required. The regulations with regard to supplementary examinations are the same as those stated in connection with the course in Arts.

EXAMINATIONS FOR HONOURS IN THE DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE

SYLLABUS.

Any graduate of this College, or any student successfully pursuing the last year of the Course of Arts or Letters may apply for a certificate of Honours in the department of English Language and Literature, but in the case of an undergraduateapplicant, no certificate will be awarded until a degree has been obtained at the close of the Academic year. Such certificates will be awarded to eligible candidates who shall have passed the Preliminary Honours Examination and the Final Honours Examination.

PRELIMINARY HONOURS EXAMINATION-1900-1901.

Candidates intending to present themselves for English Honours shall give notice of their intention on or before the first day of November of each Academic year. All candidates must pass the Preliminary Examination, which will be held between the 1st and 7th days of January in each year, on such particular days as may appear to be most convenient for the majority of candidates. In 1901, the examination will be held on Wednesday and Thursday, January 2nd and 3rd. On application, the Faculty may arrange to have a special Preliminary Examination in July. In January, 1901, the Preliminary Honours Examination will cover the ground outlined below :

ENGLISH LANGUAGE.

A review of the work done in the advanced English classes of the College — English Grammar in its higher aspects — Analysis and Etymology of the Language — Comparison of the English of Shakespeare with the English of to-day, &c. Books prescribed: Mason's English Grammar, Abbott's Shakespearian Grammar, Low's History and Structure of the English Language (London University "Tutorial Series"), Lounsbury's English Language.

ENGLISH LANGUAGE.

Jenkins' Hand-Book of English Literature; Egan's Lectures on English Literature.

e of B.L.

xaminations in Christian r subject of jects of the

ENGLISH POETRY.

A thorough, critical study of the following: Hale's Longer English Poems with annotations (MacMillan & Co.); or, Chaucer as follows: The Prologue, as in Skeate's Shilling Edition; and six Tales, namely, — 1, Knight's; 2, Monk's; 3, Clerk's; 4, Squire's; 5, Man of Laws; 6, Pardoner's; (Clarendon Press or Cambridge Edition recommended); Shakespeare's Julius Caesar, and King Lear (Rolfe's Edition]; Scott's Lady of the Lake (Ginn & Co.); Longfellow's Evangeline; Tennyson's Princess (S. E. Dawson's study of the Princess, or Rolfe's, recommended); Dowden's Shakespeare Primer (particularly the portions bearing on the prescribed plays]; Minto's Characteristics of the English Poets, Second Edition, to page 224.

ENGLISH PROSE.

A thorough, critical study of the following: "Carlyle's Essay on Burns (Ed. by Hanson: Ginn & Co.); Macaulay's Essay on Milton and Essay on Johnson, (or Macaulay's Bacon, and Burleigh and His Times); John Henry Newman's Essays on Poetry with Reference to Aristotle's Poetics, and Apostolic Tradition being Essays 1 and 3 of Vol. 1 of Newman's Essays Critical and Historical); Gates' Selections from Newman, (Henry Holt & Co.); Prof. Cook's Edition of Newman's Essay on Poetry is recommended (Ginn & Co).

HISTORY.

Outlines of British History (as in the text-book prescribed by the Nova Scotia Council of Public Instruction); Burke's Abridgment of Lingard's History of England (D. & J. Sadlier); one of Shakespeare's Historical Plays (for 1900: Richard II., or, Henry IV).

FINAL HONOURS EXAMINATION.

Those intending to present themselves for the Final Honours Examination, which will be held in 1901, on or about Wednesday or Thursday, July 10 and 11th, or on such other dates as may appear most convenient, shall give notice of their intention in that regard on or before the first of March.

At the Final Honours Examination it will be necessary for a candidate to write only on three of the Divisions (a), (b), and

(c), or on (d) or (e)—given below. These divisions shall be as follows :

de's Longer cor, Chaucer Edition; and Clerk's; 4, endon Press are's Julius Lady of the Tennyson's or Rolfe's, ticularly the haracteristics

lyle's Essay 's Essay on Bacon, and s Essays on tolic Tradisays Critical enry Holt & n Poetry is

rescribed by ke's *Abridg*er); one of *rd II.*, or,

Wednesday tes as may ntion in that

essary for a b), (b), and shall be as

- (b) Science of Language, Philology, and the History and Structure of the English Language.
- (c) History of Great Britain, Canada, and the United States, and the Constitutions of these countries.
- (d) English Poetry and English Drama (including history and criticism thereof).
- (e) Rhetoric and English Prose (including history and eriticism thereof).

To be successful in 1901, a candidate at the Final Honours Examination need take but two of the Ist, 2nd, and 3rd Divisions first above named, on the 4th or the 5th [*i. e.*, any two of Divisions [a], (b), and [c]; on, one of the latter two, *i. e.*, Division (d); on, Division (e)]. For instance, a candidate that passes the Preliminary Honours Examination. AND an Examination either on Division (d) on on Division (e) of the Final, will be entitled to the Certificate of Honours in English Language and Literature.

Division (a) - Anglo-Saxon, Etc.

In (a) the candidate must have such knowledge of the Anglo-Saxon grammar and literature, and of Early and Middle English, as can be acquired by a careful, critical study of the following:

Notabilia of Anglo-Saxon Grammar by A. J. Wyatt, M. A., (London University Tutorial Series.)

Sweet's Anglo-Saxon Primer.

Sweet's Anglo-Saxon Reader, 7th edition, or Bright's Anglo-Saxon Reader.

Beowulf (Harrison and Sharpe's edition).

Skeate: Minor Poems of Chaucer (Clarendon Press edition).

All Chaucer's *Tales* (critical study Chaucer's *Parlement* of *Foules* will be required).

Spenser's Faery Queen (critical study of Books 1 and 2).

DIVISION (b), – Historical and Etymological Study of English, Science of Language, Etc.

In (b) a candidate must have studied with the greatest care the works mentioned below, or their equivalents.

Trench -- Study of Words.

" - English Past and Present.

Angus-Hand-Book of the English Tongue.

Latham-Hand-Book of the English Language.

Low (W. H.)-The English Language; its History and

Structure. (London University "Tutorial Series") Whitney— Life and Growth of Language.

Peile—Philology.

Max Muller-The Science of Language.

-Chips from a German Workshop.

DIVISION (c) - History, Etc.

In (c) a general knowledge in the principal events in the history of England, Ireland and Scotland will be required, and also a detailed knowledge of the history of the Norman Period, and of the Reigns of Henry VII. and Henry VIII., such as can be obtained from a careful study of these times as in Lingard's *His*tory of England (unabridged); and also a detailed knowledge of later British History as contained in Justin McCarthy's *History* of Our Own Times, or an equivalent. No other text Book is at present prescribed, but, for general knowledge of British History Burke's *Abridgment of Lingard's History*, the Nova Scotia text book on British History and Green's Short History of the English People, indicate the extent of work required.

Candidates will be expected to know thoroughly all important events in Canadian History, and to be familiar with the various steps in the colonization of the different Provinces.

Dr. Bourinot's History of Canada (Story of the Nations Series) or Professor Robert's work on the same subject, or some equivalent must be carefully studied. An acquaintance with the Canadian Constitution (The B. N. A. Act of 1867), Houston's Constitutional Documents, and Pope's Confederation Documents will also be required.

A general knowledge of the history of the United States [but not a detailed knowledge] from the Declaration of Independence will be necessary; and also an acquaintance with the Constitution of the United States, the difference between it and that of Canada, etc.

Division (d)-Poetry and the Drama.

In (d) a general knowledge of the lives, times, and most im-

History and eries '')

vents in the equired, and man Period, uch as can be ngard's *His*nowledge of hy's *History* Book is at tish History Scotia text the English

ll important the various

ons Series) e equivalent e Canadian nstitutional ill also be

States [but lependence onstitution at of Can-

most im-

portant works of Chaucer, Spencer, Shakespeare, Milton Dryden, Pope, Scott, Wordsworth, Longfellow and Tennyson will be required.

The following works ought to be carefully read :-

Hales' Longer English Poems for the use of Schools; Chaucer's Tales; Spencer's Faery Queen (Books 1 and 2); Shakespeare's Richard II., Henry IVth, Henry Vth, Hamlet, Macbeth, The Tempest, Merchant of Venice, Julius Cæsar Coriolanus, Midsummer Nights Dream, Comedy of Errors, Much Ado About Nothing, As You Like It, Twelfth Night, Pericles, and Cymbeline; Morris' Historical Outlines of English Accidence, (MacMillan & Co.'s ed.); Dowden's Mind and Art of Shakespeare; Coleridge's Lectures on Shakespeare; Milton's Paradise Lost and Paradise Regained; Dryden's Hind and Panther; and Absalom and Achitophel; Pope's Essay on Man and Essay on Criticism; Scott's Lady of the Lake, and Lord of the Isles; Wordsworth's Excursion; Longfellow's Evangeline and Hiawatha; Tennyson's Princess, In Memoriam, and Idylls of the King.

In division (d), in 1901, a THOROUGH CRITICAL study of the following will be required :---

Minto's Characteristics of the English Poets, (pages 224-322); Shakespeare's Henry Vth, King Lear, or, The Tempest, A Comedy of Errors, and A Midsummer Night's Dream, Rolfe's Edition recommended; Milton's Paradise Lost, Books 1, 2 and 3, and Paradise Regained, first 600 lines; Pope's Essay on Man, or Essay on Criticism; or Dryden's Hind and Panther; Scott's Lord of the Isles; Tennyson's Idylls of the King, or In Memoriam; Dowden's Shakespeare Primer, and Dowden's Mind and Art of Shakespeare, particularly the portions bearing on the work here prescribed; Morris' Historical Outlines of English Accidence; Jenkin's Handbook of English Literature.

At the Final Honours Examination of the Academic year 1900–1901, candidates who have previously made 85 or upwards out of a possible 100, at the Preliminary Honour's Examination, may omit from Division (d), in their preparation, *Paradise Lost* and *Paradise Regained*; and other candidates may substitute for the latter works, Chaucer's *Prologue and Tales*. In doing the Shakespeare work, condidates will find Ransome's Short Study of Shakespeare's Plots helpful and suggestive.

DIVISION (e)—Rhetoric and English Prose.

In (e) the following indicates the scope of the examination : Bacon's Works -- The Essays and Advancement of Learning; Sir Thomas Brown's Religio Medici; Sir Thomas More's Utopia; Addison's Essays (particularly the Sir Roger de Coverly Papers from the "Spectator"); Johnson's Lives of Addison, Pope, Dryden and Milton; Edmund Burke's Reflections on the French Revolution, or Edmund's Burke's Sublime and Beautiful; Scott's Waverley and Guy Mannering, (or instead of these two, Boswell's Life of Johnson, or Hawthorne's House of the Seven Gables): John Henry Newman's Characteristics, by W. S. Lilly; John Henry Newman's Apologia Pro Vita Sua, or, Idea of a University, Essays on Cicero, Reformation of the 11th Century, and Apostolical Canons [a thorough, critical study of the three Essays last mentioned will be required]; John Ruskin's Sesame and Lilies, or, Queen of the Air; Jenkins' Hand-Book of English Literature; Saintbury's Nineteenth Century Literature; Rhetoric, as in Hill's Rhetoric, (or Genung's, or Coppens'); Bro. Azarias' Philosophy of Literature; Matthew Arnold's Essays in Criticism [First Series.]

At the Final Honours Examination of the Academic year of 1900-1901, candidates who have passed in the prescribed works of Chaucer at the said January Examinations or who have made 85 or upwards out of a possible 100 at the Preliminary Honours Examination, and who are taking Division (e), may omit from the latter, in their preparation, the works of Bacon, Sir Thomas Brown, Sir Thomas More, Addison, and Edmund Burke Special stress will this year be laid upon the prescribed works of Newman.

From time to time other changes may be made in the Honours Syllabus above outlined, but notices of such changes will usually be given one year before they take effect.

It is intended to provide prizes for candidates obtaining English Honours. The first prize for 1901 will be \$100; Second Prize, \$60.

Wherever there are options in the Honours Curriculum, a candidate shall in his application or notice, state the subjects and works upon which he elects to be examined. To obtain an Honours Certificate and prize, a candidate must make 75 points out of a possible 100 at both Preliminary and Final. A candidate who passes well on all but one paper, may, at the next similar Examination, take the work in which he has failed. The work of candidates for English Honours will be valued either wholly

Prose.

the examination : of Learning; Sir More's Utopia; le Coverly Papers f Addison, Pope, ons on the French Beautiful; Scott's ese two, Boswell's e Seven Gables): . S. Lilly; John , Idea of a Uni-1th Century, and f the three Essays Sesame and Lilies, Inglish Literature; etoric, as in Hill's zarias' Philosophy Criticism [First

Academic year of prescribed works or who have made liminary Honours nay omit from the acon, Sir Thomas ad Burke Special scribed works of

de in the Honours anges will usually

didates obtaining be \$100; Second

urs Curriculum, a e the subjects and l. To obtain an t make 75 points inal. A candidate the next similar ailed. The work and either wholly or in part by outside Professors, or other competent persons not connected with the College. The examiners will in all cases be instructed to allow something for excellence of style, and for scholarly use of the English language by the candidate.

As a thorough critical study is required of a few works only, candidates for Honours are requested to remember that they will be expected to be very familiar with these works in every particular, and that they ought to complete their first detailed study of these so early in the Academic year as to enable them to have ample time for a leisurely review of the whole ground immediately before the examinations.

The College reserves to itself the right to confer the degree of Bachelor of Literature or Master of Arts on such graduates as may distinguish themselves at the Honours Examinations.

ACADEMIC COSTUME.

The Academic costume consists of a gown of black stuff and a hood of blue velvet with lining as follows :

For the hood of a Bachelor of Arts, white silk. For the hood of a Bachelor of Letters, grey silk. For the hood of a Master of Arts, red silk. For the hood of a Master of Letters, green silk.

Faculty of Applied Science.

REV. RONALD MACDONALD, D. D ,

Dean, Professor, of Geology and Mineralogy. Lecturer in Zoology.

REV. HUGH MACPHERSON, D. D.,

 Professor of Chemistry and Mining Engineering, Instructor in Calculus.

CHARLES C. GREGORY, ESQ., M. CAN. SOC. C. E., ASSO. M. I. C. E., ENG., Profsssor of Civil Engineering and Applied Mechanics.

G. A. BERNASCONI, ESQ., M. CAN. Soc. C. E., Professor of Descriptive Geometry.

GEORGE MACDONALD, Esq., B. Sc., Professor of Physics and Electrical Engineering.

ARCH. A. McINTYRE, Esq., B. A., Professor of Mathematics.

JOHN A. MCKENNA, Esq., Professor of Mathematics and Mechanical Engineering.

Course of Studies.

MATHEMATICS.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

As in the Arts Course, Students in the Sophomore Year will be expected to devote more attention to Mathematics than to those subjects a knowledge of which is not imperative for a course in any one of the various divisions of Engineering. A higher standard than that required for a pass into the Junior Year of the Arts Course will, therefore, be determined by the several teachers in Mathematics as essential for admittance to the Junior Mathematics of the school of Engineering.

Science.

neralogy.

Engineering,

c. C. E., Asso.

Applied Mechanics.

gineering.

unical Engineering.

18.

behaviore Year will thematics than to imperative for a Engineering. A s into the Junior etermined by the for admittance to ering.

Junior Year.

ALGEBRA.—As in the Arts Course with the addition of Exponential and Logarithmic Series, Inequalities, Limiting Values and Vanishing Fractions, Convergency and Divergency of Series. Text-Book—Hall and Knight's Higher Algebra.

EUCLID.-Books V. and VI. with exercises on Loci, Transversals, &c.

ANALYTIC GEOMETRY.—Plane and Solid; as in Wentworth's. TRIGONOMETRY.—As in the Arts Course. Special attention must be paid to Logarithms and use of the Tables.

Senior Year.

ALGEBRA.—Continuation of preceding year's work. Continued Fractions, Indeterminate Equations, Summation of Series. Probabilities, Determinants, Theory of Equations. As in Hall and Knight's Higher Algebra.

ANALYTIC GEOMETRY. —Continuation of preceding year's work. Differential and Integral Calculus. Dynamics of Solids and Fluids.

CHEMISTRY AND ASSAYING.

Freshman and Sophomore Years.

As in the Arts Course.

Junior Year.

Organic Chemistry, Qualitative and Quantitative Analysis, and the use of electrolytic methods in chemical work. Students taking a course in Practical Chemistry devote such hours as are appointed by the professor to practical work in the Laboratory.

Senior Year.

Analysis and Assaying. Laboratory work.

SURVEYING AND GEODESY

Junior and Senior Years.

Surveying, Use of Instruments, Plane and Topographical Surveying, Topographical Drawing and Levelling. Field practise. Geodetic Surveying, Field Work of Triangulation, Use of Astronomical Instruments in Surveying and Navigation.

CIVIL ENGINEERING AND APPLIED MECHANICS.

Junior Year.

Railroad Engineering, Survey, Location and Construction of Railroads. Field Practise.

Construction and Maintainance of Common Roads.

Elementary Statics, Graphical and Analytical Methods.

Senior Year.

Analytical and Applied Mechanics. Problems in Statics and Resistance of Materials. Masonry and Foundations. Kinetics. Bridges and Buildings, Graphical Statics, Details of Iron and Steel Construction. Structural Design

Hydraulics and Hydraulic Motors. Flow of Water in Pipes. Water Wheels.

Turbines and Pressure Engines.

Water Supply and Sanitary Engineering.

Canals, Rivers, and Irrigation.

Measurement of Flow. Construction of Irrigation Works.

DESCRIPTIVE GEOMETRY, DRAWING, &c.

Junior Year.

Geometrical Drawing, Orthographic Projections, etc. tures on Draughting. Lee-

Senior Year.

Projections. Shades and Shadows. Perspective.

MECHANICAL ENGINEERING.

Junior Year.

Descriptive Mechanism. Kinematics and Dynamics of Ma-Elementary Mechanical Drawing, and Machine Design. chinery.

Senior Year.

Friction. Clutches. Belts. Cranks. The Steam Engine. Machine Tools. Machine Design, special attention being directed to the more complicated parts of machines.

Mechanical Drawing, Practical Designing of Engines and Machines.

ZOOLOGY (see Geology.)

D MECHANICS.

and Construction of

on Roads. tical Methods.

oblems in Statics and ary and Foundations. Details of Iron and

of Water in Pipes.

surement of Flow.

WING, &c.

ections, etc. Lec-

spective.

NG.

Dynamics of Mand Machine Design.

The Steam Engine. ation being directed

g of Engines and

GEOLOGY AND MINERALOGY.

Junior Year.

General Elementary Geology and Mineralogy. Lectures, suplemented with Laboratory and Field Work.

A series of lectures on Zoology will also be given in connexion with this course; illustrating the anatomy and development of vertebrates and invertebrates.

Senior Year.

Advanced Geology, Paleontology, Petrography, Historical Geology, with special reference to the Geology of Canada. Field and Laboratory Work. Studies in Ore Deposits.

BOTANY.

As in the Arts Course; with advanced work in Special Morphology for students of the Senior Year desiring to take this course.

PHYSICS.

As in the Arts Course.

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING.

Sophomore Year.

A general knowledge of Electrical Phenomena, with simple problems, as given in the Sophomore Physics of the Arts Course.

Junior Year.

Fundamental Principles of Electricity and Magnetism. Batteries and Accumulators. Electrical Measurements. Telegraphy, including Multiplex Telegraphy. The Dynamo. Electric Lighting. Commercial Forms of Current. Transformers. Principles and Forms of Alternating and Direct Current Armature Windings. Commercial Types of Field. Field Windings, Testing.

Senior Year.

Electrical Transmission of Power. Theory of Alternating Currents. Design of Direct Current Dynamos. Design of Alternating Current Generators. Design of Transformers and Induction Motors. Switchboards.

The Laboratory.

32

During the past year great improvements have been effected in the Laboratory, with a view to meet the requirements of the special and advanced scientific work which the University has undertaken. A large wing has been added to the College buildings, and equipped for practical work in the various departments of Engineering. The new building is 90 ft. x 45 ft. with a boiler house 45x20. The main wing is of brick, three stories, with a stone-basement 10 ft. deep. The boiler-house is also of brick, one story in height, with a stone basement. western half of the basement contains the engines, dynamos, The automatic steam pump, and other heavy apparatus. eastern part of the basement, and part of the first story contain The work rooms for classes in Physics and Chemistry. The cabinet of Physics, 83 ft. x 22 ft., is situated on the first floor. lecture rooms are situated on the eastern side of the building, The taking in the second and part of the first story, and have seats arranged in theatre form. The experimental tables in the three lecture rooms are supported by brick piers built upon heavy concrete foundations in the cellar, in order to ensure perfect stability and freedom from vibration. The western half of the second story contains rooms for draughting, and cabinets for specimens in mineralogy, botany, etc. Mr. McDougall, of Antigonish had the contract for the building.

The large steam boiler was manufactured by I. Matheson & Co , of New Glasgow, and set by Mr. S. O'Donoghue, of Antigonish. The steam heating plant, the finest probably in the Maritime Provinces, was erected by Messrs. Blouin, Desforges & Latourelle, of Montreal.

Besides the apparatus and supplies necessary for the illustration of general courses in Physics and Chemistry, the College is now furnished with apparatus sufficient to enable the Professors of Engineering to do excellent work in their several departments. Among the more recent additions may be mentioned the following :

A 4 Pole 171 K. W. Generator, (Can. Gen. El. Co.)

- A Booster, manufactured by the same company.
- A Magnificent Storage Battery, (100 amp., 55 cells.)
- A Weston Voltmeter, and a Weston Ammeter.
- A Hoyt Direct Reading Alternating C. Ammeter.
- A Hoyt Continuous Current Voltmeter.
- A Hoyt Alternating Current Voltmeter.

.

ts have been effected e requirements of the h the University has dded to the College n the various departs 90 ft. x 45 ft. with g is of brick, three The boiler-house is one basement. The e engines, dynamos. y apparatus. The e first story contain istry. The cabinet ne first floor. The ide of the building, ory, and have seats al tables in the three nilt upon heavy consure perfect stability half of the second pinets for specimens l, of Antigonish had

y I. Matheson & Co , thue, of Antigonish. oly in the Maritime Desforges & La-

sary for the illustrastry, the College is enable the Pron their several deas may be mentioned

n. El. Co.) pany. , 55 cells.) eter. meter. These additions, together with the electric lighting plant which was installed in the College buildings a number of years ago, and a good supply of testing and other apparatus, with which the Laboratory has been supplied from year to year, constitute a very complete equipment in the department of Electrical Engineering.

A fine 60 H. P. Engine was manufactured for the College during the past year by the Goldie & McCulloch Co. The Institution also possesses a smaller engine, a horizontal tubular boiler, a vertical do., a large and very complete steam laundry plant, independent systems of steam heating and hot water heating, an extensive plant in connexion with the water system of the Town of Antigonish, and a considerable quantity of other apparatus and machinery, including tools for repairing the different plants. The College retains in its employ a skilled workman of long experience, capable of assisting students in the workshops in carrying out the instructions of "the professors of Mechanical and Electrical Engineering.

The Library.

The Library consists of about 4000 volumes. Over fifty years ago a student named John Ryan, of Halifax, died in the Propaganda College, Rome. In his will he bequeathed his property to the Church in Nova Scotia, and after the division of the province into two dioceses, that of Arichat (now Antigonish) received its share of Mr. Ryan's bequest, part of which was a large library purchased in Rome. The present College Library is in great part made up of the Ryan collection; but both Bishop McKinnon and Bishop Cameron have contributed to it from their own libraries many valuable works. The late Rev. Alexander McLeod, of Arisaig; Rev. John V. McDonnell, of St. Andrew's; Rev. John Quinan, of Main-a-Dieu, C. B.; Rev. John McDougall, of Red Islands, C. B.; Rev. Finlay Chisholm, of Glace Bay, C. B., also bequeathed their Libraries to the College.

With the formation of the Association of Alumni, a new era has opened for this department of the College. Each alumnus is expected to contribute yearly, and, if possible, to induce somebody else to contribute to the Library or to the museum, or towards the maintenance of the outdoor and indoor sports. Alumni and other friends of the College are respectfully reminded that the Library is by no means complete, and that further contributions of books, old and new, will be gratefully received. Recent additions have rendered it necessary to re-classify the books, and to prepare a new catalogue.

During the past year the following works have been added :

From the Dominion Government.

Sessional Papers, 7 vols.

Statutes of Canada, 2 vols.

Journals of the Senate, 1 vol.

Journals of the House of Commons, 2 vols.

Report of the Auditor General, 2 vols.

Statistic, a 1 Year Book.

From the Nova Scotia Education Office. Report of the Superintendent of Education.

From the Provincial Secretary of Quebec.

Jugments et Deliberations du Consèil Souverain de la Nouvelle, France, 6 vols.

| Les Floraisons Matutinales. | | | | | | Poonshaw!. |
|------------------------------------|------|------|------|---------|-----|-------------|
| La Légende d'un Peuple. | | • | | • | • | Encoleman. |
| Les Patriotes de 1837-38 | • | • | • | • | • | r recnette. |
| L'Union des Deux Canadas | • | • | • | • | • | David. |
| Guerre du Canada | • | • | • | • | • | David. |
| Hostilitá Domogouto | • | | • | | | Montcalm. |
| A la Mamaina de Al la | | | | | | Leduc. |
| A la Memoire de Alphonse Lusig | non | | | | | |
| Lettres et Opuseules, | | | | | | Paré. |
| Fete Nationale des Canadiens Fra | ance | is. | | | | Chouinard |
| Collection des Manuscrits du Mar | écha | al d | le I | ev | is. | enounding, |
| 12 vols. | | | | | , | |
| Les Etats Unis, | | | | | | Deceller |
| Napoleon ler, | | | • | • | • | Decenes. |
| La Reine Victoria et Son Jubileo | • | • | • | • | • | Sauvalle. |
| Une Elenr du Carmolo | • | • | • | • | | Routhier. |
| La Vie de Porroult | • | • | • | • | | Braun. |
| Lacques Cartier | • | | | | | Casgrain. |
| Montochent I. C | | | | | | Dionne. |
| Montcalm et Le Canada Français, | | | | | | Bonnechose. |
| Le Tombeau de Champlain, | | | | | | Dionne. |
| Histoire et Miracles de Ste Anne d | le B | eau | ibré | 5. | | , |
| Notes -Pour Servir a L'Histoire | De | 18 | Offi | cie | PQ | |
| De la Marine et De L'Armée | Fre | nee | nigo | a | ni | |
| Ont Fait la Guerre De 1' | Ind | lon | and | 4 on | ut | |
| Sucric De 1 | Alle | ICD1 | ulu | ef10 | :0 | |

sary to re-classify the

ks have been added :

rnment.

vols.

tion Office. tion.

of Quebec. Iverain de la Nouvelle,

Beauchemin. Frechette. David. David. Montealm. Leduc. Paré. Chouinard. Levis, Decelles. Sauvalle. Routhier. Braun. Casgrain. Dionne. Bonnechose. Dionne. 6. ciers e qui ence

ucher de S. Maurice. • Huard. • Casgrain.

| Champlaine, | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|---|-------|------|---|-----|
| Les Sulpiciens et les Prétres Des | ; | Missi | ions | ŕ | Ct- |
| Histoire Populaire de Montroal | • | • | • | | |
| Le Saguenao et le Bassin du Loo S | : | i. | • | • | • |

Casgrain. De Brumath.

Dionne.

Buies.

From Bell & Sons, London. Bell's Illustrated Classics, etc., 10 vols.

From Revd. D. V. Phelan.

Life of Abraham Lincoln. Biographical Sketch of Archbishop Hughes. International Library of Famous Literature, 20 vols. Brownson's Quarterly Review.

From Prof. J. G. McGregor. A pamphlet.

From Revd. John J. Chisholm, Pictou. Cassel's Popular Educator, 6 vols.

From Revd. J. W. McIsaac, Sydney. Alzog's Universal Church History, 4 vols.

From Revd. Kenneth McDonald. Latin Delectus, 2 vols. Latin Grammar, 2 vols. Sallust. Ovid. Theologia Moralis, (Schmitt). Novum Testamentum. Les Exercises Spirituels de Saint Ignace. 35 volumes, the works of various authors.

From P. S. King & Sons, Westminster. Reports on the University Education of Roman Catholics.

From Universities, Colleges and Academies in the United States and Canada. Calendars, Catalogues, Prospectuses and Announcements.

From the College Library Funds. Parkman's Historical Works, 16 vols. Chamber's Encyclopedia, 9 vols.

From the Royal Society of Canada.

Proceedings and Transactions. Second Series, Vol. 4. Cash Donations to the Library are acknowledged on ano page.

Sources of Revenue.

The Revenue of the College is derived from an Endown Fund, from tuition fees, and from occasional donations. Academic Department draws the usual grant according to average attendance.

Were it not for the self-sacrifice of the Reverend Professor who are content with a comparatively trifling salary, the rever from the above sources would be insufficient to meet expens For the past few years the College has been engaged in extens building operations rendered necessary by the growth of t institution, and by want of sufficient domestic and infirma accommodations. Where so much has been undertaken a successfully accomplished in a few years, more funds, are course, urgently required.

In 1886 the late Very Rev. Neil McLeod, P. P., East Ba C. B., gave to the Governors of the College \$4,000.00, the interest thereon to be used *in perpetuum* in educating young eccles astics for the Diocese of Antigonish. This was the first Bursa established in the College.

In December, 1892, A. G. Hamilton, Esq., Collector Customs, North Sydney, placed at the disposal of the Governo of the College, \$2,000 for a Bursary in memory of his so Charles F. Hamilton, the proceeds being intended to educa deserving young men for the Priesthood. This Bursary will be known as the C. E. Hamilton Memorial Bursary Fund.

A partial Bursary was established during the course of th year 1896 by Miss Catherine Fitzgerald, Linwood, Antigonis County, to assist in the education of young persons.

In 1899 the number of Bursaries was further increased through the generosity of the late Austin Chisholm, of Lismore Pictou Co., who bequeathed \$2000.00, the interest of which goe "to assist in the education of one or two students of divinity of the Diocese of Antigonish, whom the teaching faculty of St Francis Xavier's College, Antigonish, may deem the most worth and needy of assistance."

In the same year a second addition was made by bequest of the late Rev. Finlay Chisholm of Glace Bay, whose executors handed over to the College Treasurer on March 24th, 1899. y of Canada. Second Series, Vol. 4. e acknowledged on another

venue.

rived from an Endowment occasional donations. The al grant according to the

the Reverend Professors, crifting salary, the revenue ufficient to meet expenses. been engaged in extensive y by the growth of the t domestic and infirmary has been undertaken and ears, more funds, are of

IcLeod, P. P., East Bay, llege \$4,000.00, the intereducating young ecclesi-This was the first Bursary

lton, Esq., Collector of lisposal of the Governors in memory of his son, eing intended to educate d. This Bursary will be Bursary Fund.

during the course of the d, Linwood, Antigonish ing persons.

was further increased, n Chisholm, of Lismore, he interest of which goes o students of divinity of teaching faculty of St. ay deem the most worthy

vas made by bequest of e Bay, whose executors on March 24th, 1899, \$240.00, the interest of which is to be devoted to assisting needy students, preferably those aspiring to the priesthood.

In 1899, a movement in aid of the Endowment Fund was initiated by the Alumni at their annual meeting. The first instalment of the Alumni subscription was paid over to the College Treasurer on June 16th, 1899, through a cheque for \$851.63 from Mr. Jos. A. Wall, Secretary Treasurer of the Alumni Association.

The movement initiated by the Alumni was made general in the following year. The amounts handed over to the College Treasurer as a result of the general appeal in favour ot the College Endowment Fund are stated below. The subjoined list gives a statement not only of the amounts paid in this year, but also of the items of the amount handed over to the College Treasurer by the Treasurer of the Alumni Association in June, 1899, and of which acknowledgment was made in last year's Calendar, though a detailed statement of said amount was not then published.

STATEMENT OF MONEYS PAID TO COLLEGE TREASURER

By Treasurer of Alumni Association, June 16th, 1899.

| Interest. | per | men | ioran | dum | 1., . | | \$849 00 | |
|---|--------|-----|-------|-------|-------|-----|----------|-----------|
| | * | • | | • | | | 12 08 | |
| | | | | | | | | \$ 861 08 |
| Paid Dr. Quinan per re | ecein | t | | | | | | |
| Paid for Receipt Blank | e | ι, | • | • | • | | \$ 8 77 | |
| Paid for Postage | з, | • | • | • | | | 25 | |
| , in the second s | • | • | . * | | | | 43 | |
| | | | | | | | | 9 45 |
| | Che | aue | for | | | | | |
| | | Juc | 101 | • | • | *' | | \$851 63 |
| Dr. Hugh Cameron | | | | | | | | |
| Revd. A. Beaton | | | | | | | \$ 17 00 | |
| Revd. A. E. Mombourse | | • | | | | | 10 00 | |
| Revd. M. Tompking | uette | , | | | | | 10 00 | |
| Revd. R. McInnie | • | • | | | | | 7 00 | |
| Revd. Joseph Macdonal | i | | | | | | 30 00 | |
| Revd. James Oninan | a, | • | | | | | 10 00 | |
| Revd. Dr. Thompson | • | • | | | | | 100 00 | |
| Duncan Cameron St. D. | : . | | | | | | 20 00 | |
| Revd. John Frager | eter's | ÷. | | | | | 4.00 | |
| form Praser, . | • | • | • | | | | 25 00 | |
| | | | Carr | ied f | orwa | rd, | 233 00 | |

38

| Revd. D. J. MacIntosh | Bro | ught | form | vard, | \$233 00 |
|---------------------------------|-------|------|------|-------|----------|
| Revd. R. McKenzie | • | | | | 30 00 |
| J. A. Gillies, | • | | | | IO 00 |
| D. Gillies, Barrister Port Hand | | | | | 50 00 |
| J. A. Chisholm. | , . | | | | 10 00 |
| I. H. Jamieson. | | | | , | 20 00 |
| A. G. Hamilton | | | | | 10 00 |
| Revd. W. F. Kiely | | | | | 35 00 |
| Revd. H. P. Macpherson | | | | | 25 00 |
| . A. Wall. | | | | 1.00 | 30,00 |
| Ion. Senator McDonald | | | | | 10 00 |
| Revd. James Fraser | • | | • | | 50 00 |
| Revd. M. Mackenzio | | | | | 40.00 |
| Revd. D. M. Macadam | | | | | 22 00 |
| mounts received from D | | | | | 33 00 |
| Rev Hugh Cittie Revd. D | r. Qu | inan | : | | 10 00 |
| Very Devid Land Land | | | | | 20.00 |
| Revd P M D Quinan, | | | | | 20 00 |
| Lohn A. McDonald, Glace B | av. | | | | 150 00 |
| John A. McIsaac, Hawkesbur | v | | : | | 33 00 |
| Revd. L. J. Macpherson | 5, | • | | | 20 00 |
| pherson, . | • | | | | 30 00 |
| | | | | | |

STATEMENT OF MONEYS PAID TO COLLEGE

TREASURER

By Treasurer of Alumni Association, June 16th, 1900.

| Revd. R. H. McDougell | | | | |
|--|------|-------|------|---------|
| Revd. James Oninan Sydney | | | | \$ 5 00 |
| Revd. M. Mackenzie Fost D | | | | 100 00 |
| Revd. James Fraser St And | | | • . | 33 00 |
| Duncan Cameron St. Data | | | | 40.00 |
| Dr. H. Cameron Mak | | | | 40 00 |
| Revd. Joseph Monda | | | | 3 00 |
| Revd P Molani | h | | | 17 00 |
| Revel D I Marinis, | | | 1 | 10 00 |
| Paud D. J. Macintosh, Descousse, | | | •. | 35 00 |
| Revu. R. Macdonald, Glace Bay, | | | | 35 00 |
| Reva. D. M. Macadam, Pomquet | | | | 33 00 |
| Revd. H. P. Macpherson, L'Ardoise | | • | | IO 00 |
| J. H. Jamieson, Port Hood | • | | | 70 00 |
| Revd. A. E. Mombourquette | • | , | | IO 00 |
| J. A. Chisholm, Halifay | | • | | 20 00 |
| Revd. R. Mackenzie Grand Min | | | | 20 00 |
| A. G. Hamilton, North Sydney, . | | | | IO 00 |
| Revd. W. F. Kiely | | | | 35 00 |
| Hon. A. Macgillivron Anti- | | | | 40.00 |
| . A. Wall | | | 1999 | 10 00 |
| | | | | 10 00 |
| ess paid (En Ont | | | | 10 00 |
| ress part (Fr. Quinan, \$100; Fr. McDe | ugal | 1 \$= | (00) | |
| | Gerr | | 00) | |

\$546 00

849 00

\$441 00

| orw | ard, | \$233 00 | |
|-----|------|----------|--------|
| • | | 30 00 | |
| • | | 10 00 | |
| | | 50 00 | |
| | | 10 00 | |
| | , | 20 00 | |
| | | 10 00 | |
| | | 35 00 | |
| | | 25 00 | |
| | | 30 00 | |
| | | 10 00 | |
| • | | 50.00 | |
| | | 40 00 | |
| | | 33 00 | |
| | | 10 00 | |
| | | .0 00 | |
| | | 20.00 | |
| | 2. | 150 00 | |
| | | 22 00 | |
| | | 33 00 | |
| | | 20 00 | |
| | | 30 00 | |
| | | | 849 00 |
| | | | |
| | | | |

D TO COLLEGE

, June 16th, 1900.

| | \$ 5 00 | |
|-----|---------|----------|
| | 100 00 | |
| • • | 33 00 | |
| | 40 00 | |
| | 3 00 | |
| | 17 00 | |
| | IO 00 | |
| | 35 00 | |
| | 35 00 | |
| | 33 00 | |
| | 10 00 | |
| | 70 00 | |
| | 10 00 | |
| | 20 00 | |
| | 20 00 | |
| | IO 00 | |
| | 35 00 | |
| | 40 00 | |
| | 10 00 | |
| | 10 00 | |
| | | \$546 00 |
| 00) | | 105 00 |
| | | |
| | | dt. |

| ъ | 4 | 4 | г | 1 | Ж | Э |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| | - | - | - | | ~ | 1 |
| | | | | | | |

STATEMENT OF MONEYS PAID TO TREASURER OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS.

| Nov. 17th, 1899. | From Treasurer Rev. I. Oning | r of Al | umni | Associa | tion, | |
|------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|-------------|---------|--------|----------|
| | R H MoDow | in, Syan | ey, \$10 | 0.00; R | evd. | |
| Jan. 25th. 1000. | Very David D. | gail, \$5.0 |), oc) | | - | \$105 00 |
| J===, 1900. | Por En Dalli | Quinan, | | | - | 175 00 |
| Feb 14th | Kev. Fr. Robitai | lle, - | - | | - | 5 00 |
| Mar ath | Joseph D. McLee | od, Duny | egan, | | - | 3 00 |
| April seth | Revd. J. J. Chish | iolm, Pic | tou. | | | 2 90 |
| Mon and (per | Dr. Quinan) J. A | A. Gillies | . M. P. | | | 50 00 |
| May 31st. | Revd. John Fras | er, - | - | | | 50 00 |
| June 4th. | C. W. Macdonald | 1, M. D., | Roxh | 17. | | 25 00 |
| June 23rd. | Revd. H. Gillis. | Hawkest | HEV | y, - | - | 50 00 |
| June 27th, 1899. | Revd. A. Macdon | ald. D | D, | - | - | 100 00 |
| Sept, 16th. | do | ,, | <i>L</i> ., | | - | 25 00 |
| Nov. 14th. | do | | | | - | 15 00 |
| May, 1900. | do | | | | - | 30 00 |
| | Revd. A I Chiat | halm | | | - | 30 00 |
| | An Unknown D | 101m, - | | | | 5 00 |
| | D A Hoom | rson, - | - | | | 5 00 |
| | Doud Ot 1 | | | | | 20 00 |
| Sent 1800 Dor | Revu. Charles M | acdonald | l, - | | | 100.00 |
| oepe., 1099. Fer | Revd. A. Macdon | ald, D. I |)., | | | 100 00 |
| | J. S. Thomps | on, M. D |)., | | | 6 |
| | Revd. J. F. R | legan, R | oxbury | | 199.34 | 0 00 |
| | Peter J. Webl | b. Dorch | ester | | - | 10 00 |
| | Moses Somer | s. Somer | ville | - | - | 4 00 |
| | H. C. Hache. | M D | vinc, | | - | 20 00 |
| | Parish of Judique | a. 1., | | - d - | - | 10 00 |
| | do | -, - | | - \$ 15 | \$ 50 | |
| | | - | - | - 47 | 00 | |
| | Parish of Arisaia | | | | | 65 50 |
| | do | | | - \$32 | 50 | |
| | do | | - | - 28 | 00 | |
| | uo | | - | - 7 | 00 | |
| | Porish of Tata | | | | | 67 50 |
| | a arish of Lochabe | er, - | - | - \$8 | 50 | 10- |
| | do | | - | - 16 | 50 | |
| | D | | | | 0- | 25 00 |
| | Parish of Lakeval | e, - | - | | | 23 00 |
| | Parish of Margare | e, - | | - 10 | 00 | 34 00 |
| | do | | | - 25 | 50 | |
| | | | | -3 | 50 | 6 |
| | Parish of St. Andr | ew's | | à an | 0 | 05 50 |
| | do | , | | · \$ 97 | 80 | |
| | | | | - 41 | 21 | |
|] | Parish of Sydney | Minos | | | | 139 00 |
| 1 | Parish of Sydney | mines, - | | | | 27 00 |
| | do do | - | | \$114 | 00 | |
| | do | | | 60 | 00 | |
| | do | | | 15 | 50 | |
| | do | | | 16 | 00 | |
| | Denist of Mr. | | | | | 205 50 |
| 1 | arish of Maryval | е, - | | \$28 | 45 | |
| | do | | | IO | IQ | |
| | | | | | | 28 61 |
| | and the second second | | | | | |
| | | C | arried | forward | 1. 4 | ATETA EA |
| | | | 17 | - mult | ., . | 1314 54 |

| | | R. | ongh | | 1 | |
|-------------------------------|-------|--------------|-------|-------|----------|------------------|
| Parish of P. Feli | x | - | ough | it it | orward, | \$1,514 |
| Thorburn and M | erigo | mie | h - | - | | 40 |
| Parish of Creign | ich | mis | u, - | - | | 16 |
| Parish of Fast B. | 1511, | - | - | - | | 39 |
| Parish of P Bou | ay, | - | - | - | | 100 |
| Parish of Bread | rgeon | 5, - | - | - | | 34 |
| de de | Or, | - | - | - | 19 05 | |
| do | | - | - | - | 23 00 | |
| Derich of Hant | | | | | | 42 |
| Parish of Stat | sbury | , | - | - | | 56 |
| rarish of St. Jose | eph, | - | - | - | 37 75 | |
| do | | • | - | - | 8 00 | |
| D | | | | | | 45 |
| Parish of Pomqu | et, | - | - | - | 38 40 | 43 |
| do | | | - | - | 10 15 | |
| | | | | | | 18 |
| Parish of Iona, | - | - | - | - | | 54 |
| Parish of Arichat | | - | - | - | 60 20 | 54 |
| do | - | - | - | - | 24 35 | |
| | | | | | 34 23 | ~ • |
| Parish of N. Sydr | lev. | - | - | | | 94 |
| do | , | | | | 17 00 | |
| do | 1 | | | | 109 50 | |
| do | | - | - | * | 10 00 | |
| | | - | - | - | 17 00 | |
| Parish of Picton | | | | | # | 213 |
| do | - | - | - | - | ₽ 25 00 | |
| do | - | - | - | - | 32 57 | |
| 40 | - | - | - | - | 1 50 | |
| Parish of Persona | 3.7. | | | | | 59 |
| Parish of Degrame | MITTO | 28, | - | - | | 401 |
| a ansi or Descous | se | - | - | - | \$ 50 00 | |
| do | | - | - | - | 8 00 | |
| Deviate of the state | | | | | | 58 (|
| Parish of Ingonish | 1, | - | - | - | | 20 (|
| Parish of Glace Ba | ay, | - | - | - | | 503 (|
| Parish of Bridgepo | ort, | - | - | - | | 525 4 |
| Parish of Boisdale | , | - | - 1 | - | | 50 0 |
| T-t-1 | | | | | | 30 0 |
| Less travelling expenses of P | Fund | sin sors, | ce Ju | ne, | 1899, | \$4363 6 42 0 |
| | | | | | | |

42 0

\$4321 6

\$5 00

The following donations were made during the year for the purposes specified below :

For the Chapel.

| Revd. A. J. Chish | olm, Creignis | sh, | | | \$2 | 00 |
|-------------------|---------------|-------|--------|--|-----|----|
| | For the | Labor | atory. | | | |
| Revd. R. McInnis, | Reserve, | | | | \$5 | 00 |

| rou | ght fo | orwar | d, | \$1.51 | 4 54 |
|-------|--------|-------|------|--------|-------|
| | | | | 4 | 0 70 |
| sh, - | | | | i | 6 00 |
| | - | | | 2 | 0 10 |
| | - | | | 10 | 0 00 |
| - | - | | | 2 | 4 60 |
| | - | I | 0.05 | 3 | 4 00 |
| | - | 2 | 2 00 | | |
| | | | , | | 2 05 |
| | - | | | 4 | 2 05 |
| - | - | 2. | 775 | 5 | 0 14 |
| _ | - | 31 | 13 | | |
| | | c | , 00 | | |
| | | - 6 | 10 | 4. | 5 15 |
| | - | 30 | 40 | | |
| | - | 10 | 15 | | |
| | | | | 42 | \$ 55 |
| - | - | - | | 54 | 1 10 |
| - | - | 60 | 30 | | |
| - | - | 34 | 25 | | |
| | | | | 94 | 55 |
| - | - | 77 | 00 | | |
| • | - | 109 | 50 | | |
| - | | 10 | 00 | | |
| - | - | 17 | 00 | | |
| | | | | 213 | 50 |
| - | - | \$ 25 | 00 | | |
| - | - | 32 | 57 | | |
| - | - | I | 50 | | |
| | | | | 59 | 07 |
| - | - | | | 401 | 20 |
| - | - | \$ 50 | 00 | | |
| - | - | 8 | 00 | | |
| | | | | 58 | 00 |
| - | - | | | 20 | 00 |
| - | | | | 502 | 00 |
| - | - | | | 525 | ECI |
| - | | | | 333 | 30 |
| | | | | 30 | 00 |
| nce | lune. | 1800 | | \$1262 | 66 |
| s | , , , | | | +303 | 00 |
| | | | | 42 | 02 |
| | | | | \$1221 | 64 |
| | | | | #4321 | 04 |
| | | | | | |

le during the year for

4.

. \$2 00

\$5 00

For the Library.

| A Flicha, | • | • | | | | \$3 | 00 |
|--------------------------------|-------|----|---|---|---|-----|----|
| A. J. G. MacEchen, Sydney, | | | | | | 5 | 00 |
| For | Prize | 8. | | | | | |
| Revd. J. W. McIsaac, . | | | | | | 86 | 00 |
| Revd. Alexander Macpherson, | | | | | | 9 (| 00 |
| John Gillis, Sydney, | | | | | • | | 00 |
| Revd. N. Macdonald, Arisaio. | | | • | • | • | 2 | 00 |
| Revd. H. Gillis, Hawkesbury | | • | • | • | • | | 00 |
| Hon, Judge Melsaac | | | • | • | • | 0 (| 00 |
| Revd. W. B. Macdonald | • | • | • | • | • | 5 (| 00 |
| Revd R MoInnie | • | • | • | • | • | 5 (| 00 |
| Revul M. Moordam | • | • | • | • | | 5 (|)0 |
| Devil D. W. Di i | | | | | | 2 (| 00 |
| Reva. D. v. Phelan, | | | | | | 2 (| 00 |
| A Friend, | | | | | | 2 (| 00 |
| Revd. H. P. Macpherson, . | | | | | | 5 (| 00 |
| Revd. James Fraser, St. Andrew | v's, | | | | | 5 (| 00 |
| Revd. John McLeod, | | | | | | 2 0 | 0 |
| Capt. Crispo, Harbor au Bouche | r. | | | | | 2 0 | 0 |
| Revd. A. Thompson, . | | | | | | 5 0 | 0 |
| Revd. James Kiely. | | | | • | • | 0 0 | 0 |
| , , , | • • | • | • | • | • | 2 0 | 0 |

Besides the above mentioned cash contributions, the following donations were also made to the Prize Fund :

A Gold Medal, presented by Senator McDonald. 4 Books, Revd. A. McDonald, D. D. A Gold Medal, C. F. McIsaac, M. P. 20 Books, Revd. D. V. Phelan. A Silver Medal, Revd. D. M. Macadam.

For the Museum.

1.-Gold quartz, received from Revd. L. J. McPherson.

2.-Rare coins, given by Revd. R. McInnis, Reserve Mines, and Prof. Horrigan.

3.-Mineralogical specimens, donated by Dr. M. A. McDonald, Sydney.

4.—Mineral specimens and a very rare medal, given by Revd. J. J. McNeil, Ingonish, C. B.

5.-Photographs, illustrated geological marine action, donated by Mr. Leon Lecasse.

6.-Two valuable physiological specimens, contributed by Dr. J. A. McIsaac, New York.

7.-Valuable books, maps, etc., relating to Canadian geology, received from C. F. McIsaac, Esq., M. P., Dr. Dawson, Director Geological Survey of Canada, and Mr. Woodman, Instructor in Geology, Harvard University. 8.-A mauser bullet, taken from Boer trenches at Paarderbe donated by A. E. Mellish.

9.—A valuable contribution, consisting of 16 interesting mine specimens from Hot Springs, Ark., donated by Revd. D. A. Chisho D. D., North Sydney.

10.—A number of books relating to geological features of Ne Scotia, donated by the Hon. A. Macgillivary, Antigonish.

The members of the Faculty would respectfully bring to a attention of friends and patrons of the College the unsatisfactor condition of the Museum, and the great necessity for having a same supplied with specimens for the various subjects in a natural sciences, in order that these may be successfully taug They will therefore be very grateful to any one who will send the Curator of the Museum, mineralogical, zoological, palaeont logical or botanical specimens.

For the College Buildings.

A 4 ewt. bell from St. Peter's Church, Port Hood, per Rev Colin Chisholm.

Residence, Fees, etc.

ADMISSION.

Applicants for admission not personally known to some menbers of the Faculty, must bring a certificate of good more character from a responsible person. Students are admitted a any time during the year, but those coming late are at a seriou disadvantage, as no modification can be made in the time-table or the arrangement of classes for their accommodation.

TERMS.

The following fees and charges are payable in advance :----

| Board | for Michaelmas Term | ng) | and | 1 T | nition | | |
|--------|---------------------|---------|-----|-------|--------|--------|---|
| Do for | r Lent Term | • • • • | | • • • | | \$60 0 | X |
| Do for | r Easter Term | • • • • | | • • • | | 60 0 | ж |
| | | | | | | 10 0 | 4 |

Medicine and the use of the Infirmary are included in the above.

Tuition for Non-Resident Students.

| Michaelmas Ter Lent Term | rm | •••• | • • | • | | • • | ••• | • | | | ••• | | | | | | | | | | | | | | \$13 | 00 |
|-----------------------------|----|----------|-----|---|-----|---------|-----|---|-----|---|-----|---|-----|---|-----|---|---|-----|---|-----|-----|---|-----|-------|------|----|
| Easter Term | | | | 1 | ••• | • | ••• | • | • • | • | • • | • | ••• | • | • • | • | • | • • | • | • • | • • | • | • • | • • • | 13 | 00 |
| | | | | | | 1 | ••• | • | • • | | • • | • | • • | • | • • | ٠ | | • • | | • • | • • | | | | 9 | 00 |

er trenches at Paarderberg,

ng of 16 interesting mineral ed by Revd. D. A. Chisholm,

geological features of Nova ary, Antigonish.

respectfully bring to the College the unsatisfactory t necessity for having the e various subjects in the ay be successfully taught. any one who will send to eal, zoological, palaeonto-

ildings.

ch, Port Hood, per Revd.

es, etc.

ally known to some memrtificate of good moral Students are admitted at ing late are at a serious made in the time-table ccommodation.

| ayable | in | advance : | |
|--------|----|-----------|--|
| (maile | | 1 1 | |

| | | | | | • | | | | | | | | | | _ | - | ~ | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|------|----|--|
| • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | • | | \$60 | 00 | |
| • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | | • | 60 | 00 | |
| • | • | • | • | • | • | 1 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | * | • | | • | • | 40 | 00 | |

ary are included in the

Students.

| * | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | \$13 | 00 |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|-----|------|----|
| • | • | • | • | • | * | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • · | 13 | 00 |
| • | * | * | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | * | • | • | • | • | 9 | 00 |

Piano (including use of).

| Michaelmas Term | \$10 | 00 |
|--|------|----|
| Poston Tonus | IO | 00 |
| Laster Term | 5 | 00 |
| Vocal Culture and Elocution are extra. | | |

The College will not refund any part of the fees for any term, or make any reduction on the same, for students who enter after the commencement or leave before the end of the term in question.

The College will not undertake to provide for the current expenses of students, unless a sum sufficient for that purpose be deposited with the Bursar in advance. Should parents or guardians be guilty of neglect in this particular, the Rector will draw on them at sight, in advance, for such sum as he may deem sufficient. The College will not hold itself responsible for money not deposited with the Rector or Bursar.

Boarders must supply their own towels and napkins.

The discipline of the College is so tempered as to secure the development of a sense of personal responsibility, without permitting anyone to waste his own time or to be an obstacle to the well-being or progress of others. Flagrant and persistent violation of the College rules is punishable by expulsion. Any conduct unbecoming the character of a gentleman, will be regarded as a violation of the College rules.

Terminal Examinations, 1900.

44

[The figures refer to the rank taken by the students in their various classes. Those whose papers were valued at 85 or upwards are marked in the first rank. Papers valued at from 75 to 85 secure the writers a second rank, and those valued at from 65 to 75 a third rank.]

English (Senior Year).

1, H. Y. Maedonald; 2. H A. Chisholm. Passed, T. J. Barry, J. P. McNeil, J. E. Wentworth.

Latin (Senior Year).

1, H. Y. McDonald; 2, H. A. Chisholm; 3, J. E. Wentworth, J. P. McNeil, T. J. Barry.

Philosophy (Senior Year).

1, Macdonald, Chisholm; 2, McNeil, Barry; 3, Wentworth.

French (Senior Year.)

2, Macdonald, Chisholm; 3, McNeil. Passed, Barry, Wentworth.

Christian Doctrine (Senior Year.)

1, Macdonald, Barry, Chisholm; 2, McNeil. Passed, Went worth.

Chemistry (Senior Year).

3, Chisholm, Barry.

Greek (Senior Year.) Passed, McNeil.

German (Senior Year.)

Passed, Wentworth.

Zoology (Senior Year).

1, McNeil, Wentworth.

Latin (Junior Year).

1, A. B. Macmillan, M. F. Power. Passed, H. B. Gillis, D. J. McDonald, H. A.Gillies, W. Morse, J. R. Power, D. C. Beaton, Smyth Campbell. H H

G R

M

C

Metaphysics (Junior Year).

1, Macmillan, Macdonald; 2, M. F. Power, Morse, Beaton, H. A. Gillies; 3, J. R. Power, W. Brown, Campbell. Passed, H. B. Gillies, A. McKenzie.

English (Junior Year.).

3, Macdonald, M. F. Power, Morse. Passed, H. B. Gillies.

Greek (Junior Year).

S, Macmillan, M. F. Power. Passed, H. A. Gillies.

French (Junior Year).

3, Macmillan. Passed, H. B. Gillies, M. F. Power, Beaton.

Christian Doctrine (Junior Year).

1, Macdonald, Macmillan; 2, Brown, M. F. Power, H. B. Gillies, McKenzie, H. A. Gillies; 3, Smyth Campbell, Beaton, J. R. Power, C. Finn.

Chemistry (Junior Year).

1, Macdonald; 2, J. R. Power; 3, A. McKenzie.

Physics (Junior Year).

2, H. B. Gillies, M. F. Power. Passed, Campbell.

Algebra (Junior Year).

Passed, Finn, H. B. Gillies.

ir

p-

m

Geometry (Junior Year).

2, Finn; 3, H. B. Gillies.

Trigonometry (Junior Year).

1, Finn, Macmillan; 2, Beaton, H. B. Gillies. Passed, Macdonald, Campbell, H. A. Gillies.

Zoology (Junior Year).

1, J. R. Power; 2, Morse.

English (Sophomore Year).

1, M. F. McIsaac; 2, W. J. Ryan, A. D. Macintosh, P. Carter; 3, E. Parnell Power, R. J. Rankin. Passed, John

McNeil, C. Morse, R. C. McLellan, W. P. Rawley, E. R. Milledge, W. W. Harrington, F. Macintosh.

Latin (Sophomore Year).

2, F. Carter, Macintosh, M. F. McIsaac, McNeil. Passed, Thomas Kenny, Harrington, Ryan, Morse, Rawley, W. J. Chisholm, McLellan.

French (Sophomore Year).

3, Morse, Macintosh, McNeil. Passed, Carter, E. P. Power, Rankin, Poirier, McLellan.

Greek (Sophomore Year).

Passed, Finn, M. F. McIsaac, Kenny.

German (Sophomore Year).

3, McNeil.

History (Sophomore Year).

1, Morse; 2, McNeil; E. P. Power, McIntyre. Passed, McIsaac, Macintosh, Carter, Chisholm, Ryan, Rawley, Harrington, McLellan.

Christian Doctrine (Sophomore Year.)

1, Macintosh, McIsaac, 2, Rankin, Power, Rawley, Ryan, Kenny, McNeil; 3, Chisholm, McLellan.

Physiology (Sophomore Year.)

2, Carter; 3, Rankin, Macintosh, Chisholm, McLellan. Passed, Rawley, McNeil, Kenny, Poirier, Ryan.

Geometry (Sophomore Year).

1, Macintosh, Rankin; 3, Carter. Passed, Poirier, Chisholm, McIsaac, Ryan, McLellan, Morse.

Algebra (Sophomore Year).

3, Rankin, McIsaac. Passed, Carter, Morse, Power, Mc-Lellan, Macintosh.

Practical Mathematics (Sophomore Year).

1, Rankin, Carter. Passed, C. Morse, J. Power, McIsaac, W. Morse, Milledge, Macintosh, Ryan, McLellan.

E. Mo

Ma H. Ma

> 3, V. Bro

Pas Le

Me A.

Co Ma Ma

> Fa Mo

Pa D.

Physics (Sophomore Year).

1, Macintosh; 2, Rankin, McNeil, Harrington, Chisholm, E. P. Power, Carter; 3, Milledge, Ryan, Rawley. Passed, McLellan, McIntyre, Poirier, Kenny, C. Morse.

English (Freshman Year).

2, D. H. Macdonald, W. B. Gillis; 3, R. J. Macdonald, A. Mackay Fraser, A. Macfarlane. Passed, J. H. Macdonald, M. H. MacCormick, H. A. Brown, A. J. Losier, A. McNeil, A. Macintosh, H. Mullins, D D. Chisholm.

Latin (Freshman Year).

1, W. B. Gillis, Fraser, J. H. Macdonald; 2, R. Macdonald; 3, McNeil. Passed, Mullins, Mackendy, Losier, Macintosh, A. V. Chisholm, McGee, McCormick, Poirier, A. Lebrun, H. A. Brown, Rankin.

French (Freshman Year.)

2, Fraser; 3, Mullins, R. Macdonald, McFarlane, Gillis. Passed, Losier, McNeil, D. H. Macdonald, J. H. Macdonald, Lebrun, D. D. Chisholm, A. Joyce, McCormick, Dorant.

History (Freshman Year.)

2, Gillis, R. Maedonald; 3, Losier, J. H. Macdonald. Passed, McFarlane, Fraser, Mackendy, Lebrun, D. D. Chisholm, Mullins, A. V. Chisholm, H. A. Brown.

Chemistry (Freshman Year).

1, Gillis; 2, Fraser; 3, McFarlane, McNeil. Passed, Mc-Cormick, D. H. Macdonald, Dorant, A. Macintosh, J. H. Macdonald, A. V. Chisholm, Joyce, Losier, H. Brown, Lebrun, Mullins, Bray, D. Macdonald, Babin, Steele.

Algebra (Freshman Year).

1, W. B. Gillis, McCormiek, A. V. Chisholm; 2, Mullins, Mc-Farlane, D. D. Chisholm, D. H. Macdonald; 3, Babin, Macintosh, McNeil, R. Macdonald, Steele, Fraser.

Geometry (Freshman year).

1, Gillis, Macintosh; 2, D. H. Macdonald; 3, A. V. Chisholm. Passed, Fraser, Mullins, Losier, R. Macdonald, H. A. Brown, D. D. Chisholm, McNeil.

Arithmetic.

48

1, Gillis; 3, D. H. Macdonald, Fraser, J. H. Macdonald, H. A. Brown. Passed, A. V. Chisholm, D. D. Chisholm, Mackendy, Mullins, McFarlane, Lebrun, R. Macdonald, H. Macgillivray.

Book-keeping.

1, Gillis, D. H. Macdonald; 2, H. Brown; 3, Fraser, Dorant, Lebrun. Passed, McFarlane, W. B. McIsaac, D. D. Chisholm, A. V. Chisholm, Macintosh, J. H. Macdonald, R. Macdonald, Steele, Mullins, Joyce, Bray.

Geography.

1, Fraser; 2, Gillis, Losier, McFarlane, D. H. Macdonald, Passed, D. D. Chisholm, A. V. Chisholm, Mullins, H. A. Brown, J. Mackendy, Dorant, Macintosh, J. H. Macdonald, Steele, R. McDonald, Bray.

COLLEGE PRIZE LIST.

FRESHMAN YEAR.

First prize, a book, for highest average in all the subjects of the year-A. McFarlane.

Latin—First prize, a two-dollar gold piece, equally merited by W. B. Gillis and A. McK. Fraser- drawn by Fraser.

French-First prize, \$2.50-A. McK. Fraser.

Chemistry-First prize, silver medal, W. B. Gillis.

Mathematics -- First prize, a five dollar gold piece, for highest average in mathematical subjects of year-W. B. Gillis.

Book-keeping-First prize, W. B. Gillis.

SOPHOMORE YEAR.

English-Special prize, awarded to J. B. McDonald. First prize, two-dollar gold piece, M. F. McIsaac.

Latin-First prize, P. Carter.

French-First prize, C. Morse.

Greek-First prize, C. Finn.

History—First prize, awarded to A. D. McIntosh for highest average in year's work.

· Christian Doctrine-First prize, M. F. McIsaac.

Mathematics—First prize, \$2.50 in gold, for highest aggregate —R. J. Rankin. Second prize, \$2.00 in gold, P. Carter.

Physics-First prize, -A. D. McIntosh.

lov

Β.

fo the

JUNIOR YEAR.

Latin-First prize, -A. B. McMillan.

Methaphysics-First prize, gold medal, equally merited by A. B. McMillan and D. J. McDonald-Drawn by D. J. McDonald.

English-Prize, D. J. McDonald.

Christian Doctrine-Prize, D. J. McDonald.

Physics, -First prize, a gold piece, H. B. Gillis.

Trigonometry-Prize \$2.00 in gold, C. P. Finn.

SENIOR YEAR.

Latin-Prize \$5 gold piece, H. Y. McDonald. Philosophy--Prize silver medal, H. Y. McDonald. English-Prize, gold medal, H. Y. McDonald. French--Prize \$5.00 in gold, H. Y. McDonald. Christian Doctrine-Prize, H. Y. McDonald.

Graduates.

B. A.

The Degree of Bachelor of Arts was conferred upon the following students :

| Hector Y. Macdonald. | Thomas J Barry. |
|----------------------|------------------|
| Hugh A. Chisholm. | James P. McNeil. |

The Degree of Bachelor of Arts was also conferred upon the following young ladies of Mount St. Bernard, who had completed the course of studies and passed the required examinations :

Cassie Macdonald. Mary L. Fraser. Pauline Macdonnell.

Matriculants.

The following students matriculated :

| H. Mullins. | Alexander Macintosh. |
|-------------------|----------------------|
| Arthur J. Losier. | John H. Macdonald. |
| A. Mackay Fraser. | William B. Gillis. |
| Ronald | J. Rankin. |

College Societies.

APOSTLESHIP OF PRAYER.

Director. — Rev. A. McDonald, D. D. Promoters.—H. Y. Macdonald, D. P. Floyd, Dan. J. Macdonald.

HOLY NAME SOCIETY.

Spiritual Director.—Rev. A. McDonald, D. D. President.—J. W. Brown. Vice-President.—John R. Power. Sec'y-Treasurer -J. W. Brown.

ST. CECILIA SOCIETY AND DRAMATIC ASSOCIATION.

President.—Prof. T. F. Horrigan. Vice-President.—A. A. Boudreau. See'y-Treasurer—Thomas Barry.

DEBATING SOCIETY.

President.--Rev. A. Thompson, D. D. 1st Vice-President.--Rev. Dr. R. McDonald. 2nd Vice-President --Hector Y. Macdonald. Sec'y-Treasurer.--D. McLellan.

ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION.

President.—Rev. D. V. Phalen. Vice-President.—D. P. Floyd. Sec'y-Treasurer.—W. Brown.

SUB-COMMITTEES.

Base-Ball.—W. Rawley, H. Gillis, A McK. Fraser. Hand Ball.—T. Barry, A. O'Toole, J. B. McDonald. Foot Ball.—W. Brown, W. Morse, J. Power. Tennis.—D. P. Floyd, T. Barry. Hockey.—W. Harrington, E. P. Power. Croquet.—A. Fraser, B. Magee, G. McSweeny. the Law Aug sors Mac Inte of I yea

atte tion men reco

of 1 and His The Ori Ref *Ch* The

En

Tr

Department of Law.

The College is indebted to the Barristers of Antigonish for the establishment of courses of lectures in the Department of Law. At a meeting of the said Barristers, held at the College, Aug 10, 1898, the following gentlemen were elected as professors of their respective subjects in this Department: Hon. A. Macgillivray, Constitutional History; C. E. Gregory, LL. B., International Law; J. A. Wall, M. A., Contracts. The series of Lectures given by these gentlemen during the last scholastic year will be continued by them during the coming session.

Any student of the Senior Year of the Arts Course who attends the Lectures on Law and passes the prescribed examinations at the end of the scholastic year, and who at the commencement of the year has been duly articled with a barrister, will be recognized by the Barristers' Society of Nova Scotia as having completed his first year as a student at law.

CONSTITUTIONAL HISTORY.

(One Lecture per Week.)

Subjects of Lectures :

Feudalism in England. Origin and growth of the two Houses of Parliament. Origin and Development of trial by jury. Origin and Development of the Courts of Law. The Royal Prerogative. History of the Law of Treason. The Liberty of the Person. The Liberty of the Press. History of Party Government. Origin and Development of the Cabinet System. History of the Reform Bills. The Written Code of the Constitution. Magna Charta. Petition of Right. Bill of Rights. Habeas Corpus. The British North America Act.

Text-Books.—Taswell-Langmead's Constitutional History of England. Cartwright's Leading Cases.

INTERNATIONAL LAW.

(One Lecture per Week.)

Subjects of Lectures :

Sources. Rights of Belligerents. Rights of Neutrals. Treaties. North Atlantic Fisheries. Convention of London 1818. Washington Treaty. Consuls. Ambassadors. Naturalization. Extradition.

Text-Books.—Hall's International Law. Davis' International Law.

CONTRACTS.

(One Lecture per Week.)

The Nature, Formation, Operation, Interpretation and Discharge of Contract.

Text-Books — Sir William R. Anson's "Frinciples of the English Law of Contract." Finch's "Cases on Contract."

List of Students, 1899=1900.

Alvarez, Ramon, Havana, Cuba.

Babin, John Henry, Pictou, N. S. Barry, Thomas J., B. A., Chatham, N. B. Beaton, Daniel C., Mabou, C. B. Beaton, Patrick F., Mabou, C. B. Bernasconi, Adolphe, Antigonish. Boudreau, Alfred A., Port Felix, N. S. Bray, Patrick, Springfield, N. S. Brown, J. William, Amherst, N S. Brown, Harold, Canso, N. S.

Campbell, Smyth, Port Hood, N. S. Carter, Peter, Antigonish. Chisholm, William J., Ashdale, N. S. Chisholm, Daniel D., Ashdale, N. S. Chisholm, Hugh A., B. A., Cape Jack, N. S. Chisholm, A. V., Cape Jack, N. S. Chisholm, Hugh G., Antigonish.

Delaney, Dolor, House Harbour, Magdalen Islands. Dixon, George, Charlottetown, P. E. I. Dorant, Edward, A., Antigonish.

Finn, Clarence P, Mabou, N. S. Fillion, Hector, St. Anne de la Pocatiere, P. Q. Fraser, A. Mackay, East Weymouth, Mass. Gillis, Hugh Bernard, Sydney, N. S Gillis, Hugh Argus, Port Hood, N. S. Gillis, William Bernard, Arisaig, N. S.

Harrington, William, Antigonish.

Joyce, Alban, Descousse, N. S.

Kenny, Thomas, Bathurst, N. B.

LaCasse, Leon Joseph, Campbellton, N. B. Lebrun, Arthur, Arichat, N. S. Losier, Arthur J., Tracadie, N. B.

Magee, Bernard, Boston, Mass. Milledge, E. Reginald, Antigonish. Morse, William, Amherst, N. S. Morse, Clifford, Amherst, N. S. Mullins, Hugh, Antigonish Harbor. Morrissey, Charles, Newcastle, N. B. McAmis, John T., Antigonish, N. S. McCormick, Michael H., Lake Ainslie, N. S. Macdonald, Daniel J., Glassburn, N. S. Macdonald, Hector Y., B. A., Margaree, N. S. Macdonald, John B., North Sydney, N. S. Macdonald, John Hugh, Arisaig, N. S. Macdonald, Ronald, North River, N. S. Macdonald, Daniel H., Antigonish Harbor. McEachen, Angus D., Sight Point, N. S. Macfarlane, Alexander, South River, N. S. Macgillivary, Hugh G., Antigonish. Macgillivary, Alexander M., Antigonish. Macintyre, Frederic, Antigonish. McIsaac, Michael F., Edwardsville, N. S. McIsaac, William Bernard, Antigonish. Macintosh, Alexander D., Lismore, N. S. Macintosh, Alexander, Antigonish. McKendy, John, Douglastown, N. B. Mackenzie, Alexander S., Victoria, N. S. Mackinnon Hugh G., Antigonish. McLellan, Roderick C., Big Pond, N. S. McLellan, Daniel, Sydney, N. S. McMaster, Angus, Long Point, N. S.

Macmillan, Angus Bernard, Hastings, N. S. McNeil, James P., B. A., Antigonish. McNeil, Alexander A, Giant's Lake, N. S. McNeil, John, Baddeck, N. S. McPhee, Robert, Antigonish. McPhail, John, Broad Cove, N. S. Macpherson, Lauchlan, Macnaughton, N. S.

O'Donoghue, Alphonsus, Halifax, N. S. O'Keeffe, Lawrence E. B. A., Rucker, Arizona.

Poirier, Alban, Descousse, N. S. Power, Michael F., St. John's, Nfld. Power, John R., Halifax, N. S. Power, E. Parnell, Antigonish.

Rankin, Ronald J., Mabou, N. S. Rawley, William P., Halifax, N. S. Ryan, William J., Canso, N. S.

Steele, James, North Sydney, N. S.

Wall, James, Antigonish. Wentworth, Joseph, Somersworth, N. H. A

Ca

m

nu

ou

B

ps

Mac

ge

co

then

CL

E

at M b el ir to o d jo ro w E

Alumni Association.

The annual meeting of the Alumni Association opened in the Assembly Hall, at 4 p. m. on Monday, June 11, Dr. Hugh Cameron, Mabou, President of the Association, in the chair. The attendance was somewhat larger than on former years, the members from the town especially being present in increased numbers. Under the head of general business the collection in aid of the Endowment Fund was very fully discussed. An outline of the method adopted in the mining parishes of Glace Bay, Reserve Mines and Bridgeport was given by the Rev. pastors of the two last mentioned places, Fathers Roderick McInnis and Charles McDonald, which, from the excellent results achieved, strongly recommended itself to the members, and the general sentiment was in favour of the employment of a local committee to assist the pastor and the visiting representative of the College. The following are the officers elected for the ensuing year :

President. – Very Rev. James Quinan, D. D., V. G. First Vice-President. – Hon. A. Macgillivray. Second Vice-President. – W. F. MacPhee. Secretary-Treasurer. – J. A. Wall.

Executive — Revs. Joseph McDonald, D. V. Phalen, John C. Chisholm, Roderick McInnis, Dr. J. J. Cameron, Messrs. E. L. Girrior and A. A. McIntyre.

Representatives on the Board of Governors. — A. G. Hamilton, Esq., and Professor A. G. Macdonald.

Auditors. - Messrs. A. A. McIntyre and E. L. Girroir.

At 6 P. M. the meeting adjourned to the following morning at 9 o'clock, the members in the meantime attending a Solemn Mass of Requiem for their departed associates, which was celebrated on Tuesday morning. Hon. A. Macgillivray, the newlyelected Vice-President, presided at the meeting on Tuesday morning, at which an interesting informal discussion on College studies took place. On motion it was resolved to place at the disposal of the Faculty the sum of \$100.00 annually, to be used at their discretion for the purposes of the College. The meeting adjourned at noon on Tuesday. Nearly all the members, however, remained for the Solemn Benediction at the Cathedral, at which the Rev. A. Thompson, D. D., Rector, preached the Baccalaureate Sermon.

Treasurer's Account, 1899=1900. ANTIGONISH, June 11, 1900. Alumni Association of St. F. X. College, In Account with J. A. Wall, Treasurer. 1899. June 13. By balance per account rendered, - \$120 62 " Dues since received, - - 154 00 " Contribution, A. G. Hamilton, to Library, - - -5 00 DR. June 13. To paid Contribution to Salary Professor of Elocution, - \$100 00 " " for Printing, 1899, - -1 75 " " for Postage and Stationery, 2 35 -\$104 10 Balance due Society to date, -\$175 52 Audited and found correct.

THOMAS SOMERS, E. L. GIRROIR, } Auditors. of

St

of

me

gra stu the

the

ele

me Se du

be

ma shi ing de thi vo

> org fie to

Constitution and By=Laws of the Alumni Association.

This Association shall be known as the Alumni Association of St. Francis Xavier's College, and shall be under the patronage of His Lordship the Bishop of the Diocese of Antigonish.

OBJECT.

No. 1. The object of this Association shall be the promotion of the interests of St. F. X. College.

MEMBERSHIP.

2. The Association shall consist of ordinary and associate members.

ORDINARY MEMBERS.

3. Those eligible for ordinary membership shall be (a) all graduates of the College, (b) all who have been at any time students of the College, and who have permanently discontinued their studies thereat; (c) all who have been or are professors in the College.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS.

Persons not eligible for membership under Section 3 may be elected Associate members.

ADMISSION OF MEMBERS.

5. Graduates of St. F. X. College may become ordinary members by making written intimation of their intention to the Secretary, and by paying a fee of \$1.00, which shall cover all dues for the first year.

6. The election of other persons eligible for ordinary membership shall be committed to the Executive. Candidates shall make written application to the Secretary; and the Secretary shall bring the application before the Executive at its first meeting after receipt thereof. The election of the candidate shall be decided by ballot, due notice having been sent to the members of the Executive that such election is to be held. Three dissenting votes shall involve rejection. The general meeting of the organization shall have power to elect by ballot any person qualified for membership.

7. The election of Associate members shall also be committed to the Executive. Candidates must be proposed in writing by a member of the Executive at a meeting thereof. The election of the candidate shall be decided on by ballot, due notice having been sent to the members that such election is to be held. One dissenting vote shall involve rejection.

PAYMENTS BY MEMBERS.

8. (a) Except as hereinafter provided, all members shall pay to the Treasurer either an annual fee of Two Dollars payable on or before the date of the annual meeting, or a fee of Twenty Dollars to become life members.

(b) Graduates shall pay on becoming members the fee of \$1.00 and no further fee shall be required of them for four years succeeding their graduation.

(c) (Sub-section (b) shall apply to graduates of 1896 and all graduates thereafter.

(d) The executive committee may at its discretion in special cases extend the period of four years mentioned in sub-section (b).

9. Members who are in arrears for their annual fees shall not be entitled to exercise the privileges of membership, as set forth in Sections 10 and 11.

PRIVILEGES OF MEMBERS.

10. Ordinary members shall have the right of speaking and voting at meetings of the Association, and that of holding any office to which they may be elected.

11. Associate members shall have all the rights of ordinary members, except that of voting on resolutions to change these Laws, and those restricted by these laws to ordinary members.

12.—The Association shall have the right to elect annually two Governors, who with the Governors otherwise appointed, shall constitute the Board of Governors of St. F. X. College. These Governors shall be eligible for re-election.

OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE.

13 The officers of the Association shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents and a Secretary-Treasurer.

14. The Executive shall consist of the officers of the Association, together with seven other members, but the majority of the Executive shall consist of ordinary members.

15. It shall be the duty of the President to preside at all meetings of the Association, and of the Executive at which he may be present; to exercise a general supervision over the interests of the Association, and to discharge such other functions as may be required of him by these Laws. the Pr Cl all

Pr

me

ke of As Ar

E

kee As point the sig

As

all inv As

be spe

up

Ex

Bo two eace the

me ma the ele 16. It shall be the duty of the Vice-Presidents to assist the President in the discharge of his duties. In his absence from meetings that one of the Vice-Presidents present, who was first in the order of their election, shall preside. In the absence of both President and Vice-Presidents, some member shall be elected Chairman.

17. It shall be the duty of the Secretary-Treasurer to attend all meetings both of the Association and of the Executive, and to keep a record of their proceedings, to conduct the correspondence of the Association, to give notice of all meetings both of the Association and of the Executive, and to draw up for each Annual Meeting a written report of the proceedings of the Executive during the year.

18. It shall also be the duty of the Secretary-Treasurer to keep a proper account of the income and expenditure of the Association. He shall produce his account books properly posted up when required by the Executive, and shall present to the Association at its Annual Meeting a balance sheet and report, signed by two auditors, who shall have been elected by the Association.

19. It shall be the duty of the Executive to carry into effect all resolutions of the Association, to provide for the profitable investment of funds, and generally to manage the affairs of the Association.

20. The officers and other members of the Executive shall be elected annually at the Annual Meeting, in the manner specified in Section 25.

21. Any vacancy occurring in the Executive may be filled up by the Executive.

22. The duties of the officers and other members of the Executive shall terminate at the conclusion of the Annual Meeting.

ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS.

23. The election of the two persons to be members of "The Board of Governors of St. F. X. College," shall, if more than two persons be nominated, be by ballot at the Annual Meeting each year, and a certificate of their appointment shall be given them under the hand of the President and Secretary-Treasurer.

24. In the event of the death or resignation of any such member or members of the Board of Governors, the Executive may, if they see nt, call a special meeting of the Association for the election of their successors, and the person or persons thus elected shall hold office during the remainder of the term for which their predecessors were appointed. The mode of election shall be that specified in Section 23.

ELECTION OF OTHER OFFICERS AND MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE.

25. The President, Vice-Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer, and other members of the Executive, shall be elected at the Annual Meeting from among candidates nominated at that meeting. The election shall be conducted by ballot, unless the meeting by an unanimous vote choose some other method.

MEETINGS OF THE ASSOCIATION.

26. The Association shall hold one general meeting in each year, in the College Hall, on one of the days of the closing exercises of the College, or such other day as may be chosen by the Executive Committee, of which day the Secretary shall give a fortnight's notice to the members of the Association.

27. The order of business of the Annual Meeting shall be as follows :

(1.) Reading of Minutes.

(2.) President's Address.

- (3.) Report of the Executive.
- (4.) Treasurer's Report.
- (5.) General Business.
- (6.) Election of Officers, other members of the Executive, Representative Governors, and Auditors.

28. Special meetings of the Association may be called by the Executive at any time, provided five days' notice (exclusive of the day of mailing) of the time, place and object of such meetings be given by circular to each member by the Secretary.

29. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting on receipt of a requisition to that effect, signed by at least ten ordinary members, and specifying the object for which such meeting is desired. Should the President fail to do so within five days, any one of the Vice-Presidents shall have the right to call such meeting.

80. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting unless notice has been given thereof in the circular.

31. At all meetings of the Association twenty-five members shall form a quorum. Every member shall have a right to one vote; but in the case of an equality of votes the chairman shall be entitled to a second or casting vote.

MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE.

32. Meetings of the Executive may be called at any time by the President (or in his absence by any of the Vice-Presidents), р п

th at st

a th

01

fo Se B

ad

A

An me giv or to Pr cls am

the

end int or At lisl

> it v eag

gei

provided two day's notice of the time, place and object of such meetings be given to the members.

33. It shall be the duty of the President to call a meeting of the Executive on receipt of a requisition to that effect, signed by at least three members thereof, and specifying the object for which such meeting is desired. Should the President fail to do so, any one of the Vice-Presidents shall have the right to call such meeting.

34. At meetings of the Executive, three members shall form a quorum. Every member shall be entitled to one vote, but in the case of an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

ADDRESS OF MEMBERS.

35. Each applicant for membership shall in his application for membership give his address, and shall promptly notify the Secretary of any change thereof, and all notices required by these Bye-Laws shall be sufficiently given if mailed in due time to such address, postage prepaid.

PUBLICATIONS.

36. A report of the financial condition and the work of the Association shall be published annually, and sent to all members of the Association.

ALTERATION OF LAWS.

37. These laws cannot be altered or amended, except at an Annual Meeting, and by a majority of two-thirds of the ordinary members present, and unless notice of such change has been given, either at the previous Annual Meeting of the Association or by circular mailed to each member at least one month previous to the meeting at which such change is proposed to be made. Provided that, at any Annual Meeting of the Association any clause of the Constitution or Bye-Laws may be suspended or amended, or any clause added thereto, by an unanimous vote of the meeting.

NOTANDA.

It was resolved by the Association that each member should endeavour to contribute annually some specimen or object of interest to the College Museum, some work to the College Library, or something to the Laboratory, the Gymnasium, or the College Athletic Association. A list of such contributions will be published annually in the Calendar.

To accentuate the social aspect of the meeting of old students, it was resolved to make an annual Alumni Dinner a feature of each yearly gathering.

The expenses of this dinner are to be defrayed out of the general funds of the Association.

Members of the Alumni Association.

62

NAME.

RESIDENCE.

M M M M M M M M

| Right Rev. John Cameron, D. D. Bishop of Antigonish Batan |
|---|
| Barry, H. D., B. A., '97, Grand Sominan, Patron. |
| Beaton, Rev. Alexander, P. P. B. A '84 West Arishet C. D. |
| Beaton, Ronald, B. A., '97. Propaganda Borna H. |
| Boyd, Angus, Collector of Customs |
| Boyd, John A., B. A., '95, Barristor Antigonish. |
| Boyd, A. J. Merchant. |
| Cameron, Allan J., B. A. '98 |
| Cameron, Duncan, Merchant |
| Cameron, Hugh, M. D., |
| Cameron, John J., M. D. |
| Cameron, J. A. H. B. A. Banviston, Mula O. D. |
| Campbell, Daniel A. |
| Carroll, W. F., B. A. '97 |
| Chisholm, Rev. Alexander D D P P Limargaree, C. B |
| Chisholm, Rev. Arch J. P. P. B. A 201 Control Co |
| Chisholm, Rev. Colin, P. P. |
| Chisholm, Rev. D., P. P. P. P. Port Hood, C. B. |
| Chisholm, Rev. D. A. D. D. B. A. 280 North S. J. |
| Chisholm, Rev. John J. P. P. A., 60, North Sydney, C. B. |
| Chisholm, Rev. Joseph |
| Chisholm, Rev. John C. P. P. St. Long Point, C. B. |
| Chisholm, A. D. Merchant, St. Joseph's, Antigonish. |
| Chisholm, Colin Barristor |
| Chisholm, C. P. M. P. P. Bawigton Sydney, C. B. |
| Chisholm, Daniel M. Teacher, Antigonish. |
| Chisholm, Joseph A. M. A. Bomiston, St. Andrews, Ant. |
| Chisholm, W. C. Merchant, A., Darrister, Halifax. |
| Connolly, E. W. B. A '03 Heatherton, Ant. |
| Connolly, J. P. B. A '94 St. App's College Claude by the |
| DeBury, C. V., B. A '93 |
| DeBury, L. V. B. A. '05, I.L. B. St. John, N. B. |
| DeCoste, Stephen B A '98 |
| Dovle, Rev M P P |
| Doyle, James |
| Floyd, D. P. B. A 207 |
| Fraser, Rev. Jamos, P. P. |
| Fraser, Rev. John A. P. P. |
| Fraser, John C. M. D St. Peters, C. B. |
| . East Weymouth, Mass. |

| Gallant, Rev. L., P. P., | | Port Felix, Guysboro, |
|--|-------|----------------------------------|
| Girroir, E. Lavin, B. A., LL. B., B: | arris | ter Antigonish. |
| Gillies, J. A., M. A., M. P., Barrist | er. | . Sydney, C. B. |
| Gillis, Rev. D. C., B. A., Ph. D., Pro | ofess | sor, College, Antigonish. |
| Gillis, Rev. Hugh, P. P. | | . Hawkesbury, C. B. |
| Gillis, Rev. James A. M., B. A. '92 | | Glace Bay, C. B. |
| Gillis, Donald, Barrister, | ' | Port Hood, C. B. |
| Gillis, A. D., | | New Glasgow. |
| Grant, Rev. R., | | Heatherton, Ant |
| Hache, Henry, M. D., | | Somerville Mass |
| Hamilton, A. G. | | North Sydney, C. B. |
| Hanrahan, E. C., Merchant, | | Sydney C B |
| Hearn, D. A., Barrister. | | Sydney C B |
| Hearn, J. H., Barrister, | | Sydney C B |
| Horrigan, T. F. M. A. Professor | | Ottawa |
| Jamieson, John H., Barrister | | Port Hood C B |
| Johnson, Alex., M. P. P. | | Bridgeport C B |
| Kiely, Rev. W. F., P. P. | | Mainadian C B |
| Kiely, Rev. James Curate | • | Glaco Bay C B. |
| Kyte, George W., Barrister | • | St Potors C B |
| Kirk, Robert D. Merchant. | | Antigonish |
| Meyer E J M D B A '90 | • | Foimvillo N P |
| Miller, A. W. B. A. '98 | • | Margaroo Korks C B |
| Mombourquette, Rev. A. E. P. P. | | Friar's Hoad C B |
| Murphy Rev Joseph | | Carbonoar Ned |
| MacAdam Rev M A Professor | | College Ant |
| MacAdam Rev D M P P | • | . Conege, Ant. |
| McCambridge P H M D | Stor. | . Fonquet, Ant. |
| Macdonald Roy A D D P A | Stew | Professor, Sherby Co., III. |
| McDonald Roy A L D D D | 00, | Professor, Conege, Ant. |
| McDonald Roy A P P A '04 | 1., | os, Broad Cove, C. B. |
| McDonald Roy Losonh P P | • | Antigenich |
| McDonald Roy Noil P P | | Antigomsh. |
| Macdonald Rev Ronald P P | | Class Rev C P |
| MacDonald Rev. Ronald D D R | | - Glace Day, C. B. |
| Professor | A., | College Antigenish |
| McDonald Rev Roderick P P | - | Duidge, Antigonish. |
| Macdonald Rev. Ches W P P | - | - Bridgepart C P |
| McDonald Hon William Sonator | - | - Bridgeport, C. B. |
| Macdonald A G M A Professor | - | Normal School Trans |
| McDonald, C. W. M. D. | , - | Normal School, Truro. |
| McDonald, Donald M D | - | - Roxoury, Mass. Baddool: C D |
| McDonald, Joseph Barrister | - | North Sydney C D |
| McDonald, L. X., Barrister, Judge o | f P | Pohate Sydney C B |
| and the start of t | | byuney, U. D. |

L

| McDonald, M. A., M. D. |
|--|
| Macdonald, P. A. M. D Sydney, C. B. |
| McDonald R I P A man Hawkesbury, C. B. |
| Letronand R. L., D. A., 96, Eccl. Student, - |
| Macdanald D. G Grand Seminary, Ouchoo |
| Macdonald, R. St. John, Medical Student, McGill University |
| McDonald, William, B. A., '96, Little Glass Bar, G. D. |
| Macdonald, W. H., (Jr.) M. D. B A '89 And' Day, C. B. |
| McDonnell, John, Teacher |
| McDougall, John B A '82 - Afton, Ant. |
| McDongall Joseph W D A tor Sydney, C. B. |
| McDongell John H., B. A., 87, Barrister, Montreal. |
| MeDougall, John H., Antigonish. |
| MerDougail, Rev. R. H., P. P., Thorburn N. S. |
| MacLehen, A. J. G., M. A., Barrister Sydney C. P. |
| MacEchen, Alex., M. A., Booria III II O. |
| MacEchen, Francis A., Barrister |
| MacGregor, Rev. D. M. D. D. |
| Macgillivray, Rev A F P P |
| Macgillivray Hon Anana O. G Boisdale, C. B. |
| Macgillivray, A. H. D. K. Q. C., M. P. P.,- Antigonish. |
| Macgillineray, A. H., Barrister, Q. C., Guysboro. |
| Malginivray, A. J., Barrister, Ottawa |
| Melinis, Rev. R, P. P., Reserve Mines C P |
| McIntosh, Rev. D. J., P. P., Descenses, C. B. |
| McIntyre, Arch. A., LL. B., Asticution |
| McIsaac, Angus, Esq., C. C. Judge |
| McIsaac, Colin F., Barristor M. P Antigonish. |
| McIsaac, John, Bank Manager, M. I., Antigonish. |
| McIsaac, Rev I W D A toc Hawkesbury, C. B. |
| McIsaac William D. A., 90, Curate, - Sydney, C. B. |
| McKenzie Ben Mill A., St. Andrews. |
| McKenzie, Rev. Michael, P. P., East Bay, C. B. |
| McKenzie, Rev. Roderick, P. P., Grand Mire C P |
| McKeough, Rev. James, P. P., B. A., '94 Canso N.S. |
| McKinnon, Rev. Colin F., P. P., Sydney Mines C. D. |
| McKinnon, Alexander, Postmaster. |
| McKinnon, C. F., B. A., '95. |
| McKinnon, J. C., M. D Antigonish. |
| McKinnon, John L. B. A. 202 D Antigonish. |
| McKinnon, W F P A 205 Barrister, - Halifax. |
| McMillan Engris N. A., 97, Medical Student, Antigonish. |
| MeMaster Des L N. |
| McMaster, Rev. J. F., P. P., - Mabou C. B. |
| McNell, Right Rev. N., D. D., V. A., - St. George's Ned |
| McNell, Rev. J. J., B. A., '94, Thorburn N. C. |
| McNeil, Rev. R. |
| McNeil, Angus, - |
| NcNeil, Alexander, M. A. LL, B. Dowieter, Descousse, C. B. |
| , and L. D., Darrister, Halifay |

| McNeil, Roderick. | 1.5.19 | | | Poster C. C. D. |
|--------------------------------|--------|-------|---------|------------------------|
| McNeil, M. J. T., Inspector of | f Sch | onla | Di. | Deaver Cove, C. B. |
| McNeil, Daniel, Barrister | n Sen | UUIS. | , nn | rer Bourgeois, C. B. |
| Macpherson, Rev. H P P | p p | i | ,00 | Hallfax. |
| Macpherson, Rev. I. I. D. A | r., n. | A., | 89, | L'Ardoise, C. B. |
| McPherson Rev M A D | ., 80 | , Pr | ·01., | College, Antigonish. |
| McPherson Roy Hugh D. D. | ., | | L | ittle Bras d'Or, C. B. |
| McPherson Daniel B A | ., в. | A., | '95, | College, Antigonish. |
| MoPhie W E D | 8, | | | Sydney Mines, C. B. |
| MoDhie, W. F., Barrister, | | | | Halifax. |
| McPine, James McD., B. A., | '95 | | Sout | h River, Antigonish. |
| McKae, Colin, | | | | Belle Cote, C. B. |
| O'Brien, J S., Merchant, | | | | Antigonish. |
| D'Donoghue, S., Architect, | | | | Antigonish. |
| Phalen, T. M., B. A., '93, | | | | Professor, College |
| Phelan, Rev. D. V., | | | | Frofessor College |
| Ritchie, Edmund S., B. A., '9 | 8. | | | St. John N B |
| Quinan, Rev. James, P. P., | | | | Sydney C P |
| Juinan, Very Rev. James M | D.D | V | G | Arichat C D |
| shaw, Rev. John, P. P., | | · · · | · · · , | Laborale Ant |
| Somers, Thomas, Merchant | 1 | | | Lakevale, Ant. |
| Thompson, Rev. A., D. D. B. | | 20 | Dee | Antigonish. |
| Chompson, John S M D | · A., | 00, | Rec | tor, College, Ant. |
| Chompson William P | • | • | • | Cambridge, Mass. |
| Compking James I | • | • | • | 1 armouth. |
| Compking Por Michael D D | | | • | Rome, Italy. |
| Voll I A M A D | •• | | | Guysboro. |
| Vall Martin M. A., Barrister, | | | • | Antigonish. |
| Val., Martin M., B. A., '95, | | | | Glen Alpine, Ant. |
| 1 eob, D. A., M. A., M. D., | | | | Scranton, Pa. |

N. B. — Former Students who are qualified to become members of the Alumni Association, but have not yet been enrolled, are urgently requested to apply for admission.